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RAMTRON

2007 Letter to Stockholders

To our stockholders:

2007 was a banner year for Ramtron International Carporation. We delivered profitable revenue growth and strong opera-
tional performance as we continued 1o execute our strategy of leveraging F-RAM's proven advantages and our application
expertise to further penetrate target markets - metering, computing, automotive and industrial.

Escalating data collection requirements are driving the need for our solutions in electronic appfications and creating an
ever expanding array of opportunities for growth. In 2007 we saw growth in each of our target markets. The proliferation
of smart utility metering programs expanded our presence in the growing energy market with scores of customers world-
wide. Also, F-RAM's leading fast-write, high-endurance and low-power features continued to resonate with industrial sys-
tem designers and, in the automotive sector, our success in qualifying select products to automolive grade certifications
led to further penetration of applications for electronic safety and entertainment systems. Finally, we expanded and deep-
ened relationships with customers in the computing market, which has led to the intreduction of new custom devices for
printer consumables.

Full-year 2007 revenue grew to $51.1 million, 26% higher than the $40.5 million we achieved in 2006, which was led by
significant gains in metering and industrial applications. Integrated product revenue nearly doubled to $7.4 million, or
14.8% of revenue, up from 9.5% of revenue last year. Along with this top line growth were record profits, which totaled
$4.7 million, or $0.18 per share, excluding non-cash, stock-based compensation expense of $2.3 million and an income
tax benefit of $7.5 million. Compared to 2006, net income and eamings per share in 2007 tripled, demonstrating the
leverage built into our operating model. Our top fine growth along with controlled spending and discipfined working capital
management yielded positive operating cash flow and a strengthened balance sheet. We ended 2007 with cash and cash
equivalents of $6.8 million compared to $4.3 million at the end of 2006.

Introducing new products suited to next generation electronic applications in our target markets remains the corerstone
of our growth strategy. In 2007, we expanded our integrated product line, extended stand alone memory densities, and
made our entry into custom products.

New products totaled 17, exceeding by 4 our product development geal for the year, and bringing the total number of
products in our portfolio to more than 60. Within the mix of new products were 11 integrated devices - F-RAM-enhanced
products with greater functionality - that serve to move Ramtron up the value chain with customers.

We also introduced our first 4-megabit (Mb) F-RAM memory device, built on an advanced 130-nanometer manufacturing
process al the facilities of our development partner, Texas Instruments. Since the introduction of the 4Mb F-RAM, we
have also launched two new 2-Mb F-RAM products. These new high-density products are finding their way into applica-
tions across all of our target markets.

In 2008, we expect to benefit from this past year's product development activity as new and existing customers begin new
product designs using our latest introductions. And, with earlier customer product designs nearing completion, we expect
an increasing revenue contribution from prior year's product introductions. To sustain momentum, we plan to introduce
14 new producls in 2008, including new integrated, custom and stand-alone memory devices, and to add higher levels of
functionality and value to our current praducts. With our enabling F-RAM features and custom devices there is a lot of
head room to grow.




Along with our focus an executing to our near term operating plan, we are working strategically to advance the use of our
solutions in new and exciting applications. We constantly strive to pioneer and innovate, which results in enabling products
that help our customers become winners. We believe that our steadfast commitment to this principle will continue to reap
rewards for our company.

At Ramtron we are leveraging our proven F-RAM technology to push further into our target markets and accelerating
product development to take full advantage of the burgeoning demand for reliable data collection in electronic applica-
tions. Qur successes in 2007 position us for continued momentum in 2008, and we are commitled to extending our rack
record of top and bottom line growth white advancing the company toward its long temm operating targets.

In closing, | would fike to thank our employees for their dedication to sustaining Ramtron’s F-RAM leadership, our cus-
tomers and partners for their continued support, and our shareholders for their loyalty fo the company.

Sincerely,

(e

William W. Staunton, il
Chief Executive Officer
April 22, 2008




RroxyiStatement

RAMTRIEN

RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
1850 RAMTRON DRIVE
COLORADO SPRINGS, COLORADO 80921

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TQ BE HELD MAY 22, 2008
To the Stockholders of Ramiron Intemational Corporation:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting”) of Ramtron Intemational
Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the "Company”}, will be held on May 22, 2008, at 10:30 a.m., local time, at the
Hilton Garden Inn, 1810 Briargate Parkway, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80920, for the following purposes, each as more
fully described in the attached Proxy Statement:

1. To elect seven directors to our Board of Directors. The names of the nominees 1o be presented for election are:
William G. Howard, William W. Staunton, Ill, Eric A. Balzer, William L. George, Jack L. Saltich, Theodore J. Cobum,

and Eric Kuo.

2. To ratify the appointment of Ehrhardt Keefe Steiner & Hottman PC as independent auditors of the Company for the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2008.

3. To transact other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment(s) thereof.

Only record holders of the Company’s Common Stock at the close of business on Aprit 3, 2008, are entitled to notice of,
and to vote al, the Annual Meeting and at any adjoumment(s) thereof. A list of stockhalders entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting will be available for inspection at the Company's corporate headquarters for any purpose germane to the Annual
Meeting during ordinary business hours for ten (10) days prior to the Annual Meeting.

A copy of our summary annual report to Stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2007, which contains consolidaled
financial slatements and other information, accompanies this Nofice and the enclosed Proxy Statement. These materials
may be accessed on our website at www.ramlron.com, Investor Relations, Investor Briefcase. This proxy statement and
accompanying proxy are first being mailed to our stockholders on or about April 22, 2008.

All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting in person. Whether you own a few or many shares of
stock and whether or not you expect to attend the Annual Mesting in person, it is important that your shares be voted to
ensure your representation and the presence of a quorum at the annual meeting. Most beneficial stockholders who own
shares through a bank or broker may vote by telephone, the Intemnet, or by mail. Registered stockholders who own their
shares in their own name must vote by mail or in person. If you vote by mail, please complete, sign, date and return the
accompanying proxy card in the enclosed envelope. If you decide td attend the annual meeting and wish to change your
proxy vote, you may do so by voting in person at the annual meeting. Your proxy may be revoked at any time prior to the
annual meeting in accordance with the procedures sel forth in the Proxy Statement.

By Order of the Board of Directors

=

Eric A. Balzer
Secretary
Colorado Springs, Colorado
April 22, 2008
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RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
1850 RAMTRON DRIVE
COLORADO SPRINGS, COLORADO 80921

PROXY STATEMENT
INFORMATION CONCERNING SOLICITATION AND VOTING

The enclosed proxy is solicited by and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Ramtron International Corporation, a
Delaware corporation (“us,* “we," or the "Company”), for use at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual
Meeting") to be held on May 22, 2008, at 10:30 a.m., local time, or at any adjournment(s) thereof, for the purposes set
forth herein and in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Annual Meeting will be held at the
Hilton Garden Inn, 1810 Briargate Parkway, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80920.

VOTING AND PROXIES
What Information is contained in this proxy statement and how do | get extra copies?

The information in this proxy statement relates to the proposals to be voted on at the Annual Meeting, the voting process,
our Board of Directors and the committees of our Board of Direclors, the compensation of directors and our executive offi-
cers for fiscal year 2007, and other required information.

The proxy materials consist of this Proxy Statement and our 2007 Summary Annual Report. Also, we provide free copies
of our Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K upon request. Send such requests to Ramtron Internalional
Corporation, Investor Relations, 1850 Ramtron Drive, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80921, or call toll free 1-800-545-3726.

What items of business will be voted on at the annual meeting?

The items of business scheduled to be voted on at the Annual Meeting are:
To elect seven directors to our Board of Directors. The names of the nominees to be presented for elec-
tion are: William G. Howard, William W. Staunton, Ill, Eric A. Balzer, William L. George, Jack L. Saltich,

Theadore J. Coburn, and Erig Kuo.

To ratify the appointment of Ehrhardt Keefe Steiner & Holtman PC as independent auditors of the
Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008.

We will also consider any other business that properly comes before the Annual Meeting or any adjournments or post-
ponements thereof. See "What Happens if Additional Matters are Presented at the Annual Meeting? below.

What is the purpose of the annual meeting?

At the Annual Meeting, our stockholders will be asked to act upon the matters outlined in the nolice of meeting and
described in this proxy statement, including the election of directors and ratificalion of the appointment of our independent
auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008. In addition, management will respond to questions from stockhold-
ers.
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Who is entitled to vote?

Only hotders of record of shares of the Company's Common Stock at the close of business on April 3, 2008 (the "Record
Date") are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. If you were a stockholder of record on thal date, you will be entitled to
vote all of the shares that you held on that date at the meeting, or any postponements or adjournments of the meeting.
26,524,033 shares of Common Stock were outstanding as of the ctose of business on the Record Date.

What are the voting rights of the holders of the Company’s common stock?
Each outstanding share of the Company's Common Stock is entitled to one vole for each matter.
How can | vote my shares without attending the annual meeting?

Whether you hold shares directly as the stockholder of record or beneficially in street name, you may direct how your
shares are voted without attending the Annual Meeting. If you are a stockholder of record, you may vote by submitting a
proxy. If you hold shares beneficially in street name, you may vote by submitting voting instructions to your broker, trustee
or nominee. For directions on how to vote, please refer to the instructions below and those included on your proxy card or,
and for shares held beneficially in street name, the voting instruction card provided by your broker, trustee or nominee.

Stockholders of recard may submit proxies by completing, signing and dating their proxy cards and mailing them in the
accompanying pre-addressed envelope. Stockholders who hold shares beneficially in street name may vole by mail by
completing, signing, and dating the voting instruction cards provided by their brokers and mailing them in the accompany-
ing pre-addressed envelopes.

Can | change my vote after | returm my proxy card?

Yes. Even after you have submitted your proxy, you may revoke or change your vote at any time before the proxy is exer-
cised by filing either a notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date with the Cerporate Secretary of
the Company. The powers of the proxy holders will be suspended if you attend the meeting in person and so request,
although attendance at the meeting will not by itself revoke a previously granted proxy.

How are votes counted?

In the election of directors, you may vote "FOR" all of the nominees or your vote may be "WITHHELD" with respect to all
of or one or more of the nominees.

For the vote of ratificalion in the appointment of our independent auditors, you may vote “FOR," *AGAINST" or
"ABSTAIN." If you "ABSTAIN," the abslention has the same effect as a vote "AGAINST." If you provide specific instruc-
tions with regard to certain items, your shares will be voted as you instruct on such items. If you sign your proxy card or
voting instruction card without giving specific instructions, your shares will be voted in accordance with the recommenda-
tions of the Board ("FOR" all of the nominees to the Board and "FOR" the ratification of the independent auditors).

What is the voting requirement to approve each of the proposals?

In the election of directors, the seven persons receiving the highest number of "FOR" votes cast in their favor at the
Annual Meeting will be elected. Ratification of the independent auditors requires the affirmative "FOR" vote of a majority
of those shares present in person or represented by proxy and enlitled to vote on those proposals at the Annual Meeting.
If you hold shares beneficially in street name and do not provide your broker with voting instructions, your shares may
constitute "broker non-votes.” Generally, broker non-votes occur on a matter when a broker is not permitted to vote on that
matter without instructions from the beneficial owner and instructions are not given. Brokers generally have discretionary




authority to vote on each of the two items {election of directors and ratification of the independent auditors) expected to be
presented. In tabulating the voting result for any particular proposal, shares that constilute broker non-voltes are not con-
sidered entitled to vote on that proposal: however, they will be counled for purposes of determining a quorum. Thus, bro-
ker non-voles will not affect the outcome of any matter being voted on at the Annual Meeting, assuming that a quorum is
obtained. Abstentions have the same effect as voles against the matter.

What constitutes a quorum?

The presence al the Annual Meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority in the aggregate voting power of
the outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote will constitute a quorum, permitting the conduction of business
by the Company at the meeting. As of the Record Date, 26,524,033 shares of Common Stock, representing the same
number of votes, were oulstanding. Thus, the presence of the holders of Common Stock representing at least 13,262,017
voles will be required to establish a quorum. Proxies received but marked as abstentions and broker non-votes will be
included in the calculation of the number of shares considered to be present at the Annual Meeting.

What happens if additional matters are presented at the annual meeting?

Other than the two items of business described in this proxy statemeni, we are not aware of any other business to be
acted upon at the Annual Meeting. If you grant a proxy, the persons named as proxy-holders, Gery E. Richards and
William W. Staunton, will have the discretion to vote your shares on any addilional matters properly presented for a vole at
the Annual Meeting. If for any unforeseen reason any of our nominees is not available as a candidate for director al the
time of the meeting, ihe persons named as proxy holders will vote your proxy for such other candidate or candidates as
may be nominated by the Board.

What should | do if | receive more than one set of voting materials?

You may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this proxy statement and multiple
proxy cards or voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your shares in more than one brokerage account, you
may receive a separate voting instruction card for each brokerage account in which you hold shares. If you are a stock-
holder of record and your shares are registered in more than one name, you will receive more than one proxy card.
Please complete, sign, date and retum each proxy card and voting instruction card that you receive.

Do the stockholders have any appraisal rights with regard to any of the proposals?
No. Under Delaware law, stockholders are not entitied to appraisal rights with respect to these proposals,
Who will bear the cost of soliciting votes for the annual meeting?

The Company is making this solicitation and will pay the entire cost of preparing, assembting, printing, mailing and distrib-
uting these proxy materials and soliciting votes. Provided, however, that in the event the Company determines it is neces-
sary to engage a proxy soficiting firm for the purpose of soliciting proxies for itlems to be voted upon, the Company may do
so prior lo the meeting. Any such firm engaged would be paid customary fees for their services. If you choose to access
the proxy materials over the Internet, you are responsible for Internet access charges you may incur. In addition to the
mailing of these proxy materials, the solicitation of proxies or votes may be made in person, by telephone or by electronic
communication by our directors, officers and employees, who will not receive any additional compensation for such solici-
tation activities. Upon request, we will reimburse brokerage houses and other custodians, nominges and fiduciaries for for-
warding proxy and solicitation materials to stockholders.

AXOUS \
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Where can | find the voting results of the annual meeting?

We intend to announce preliminary voling results at the Annual Meeting, and we will publish final results in our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter ending June 30, 2008.

What is the difference between holding my shares as a stockholder of record and as a beneficial owner?

Most stockholders hold their shares through a broker or other nominee rather than directly in their own name. As summa-
rized below, there are some distinctions between shares held of record and those owned beneficially.

» Stockholder of Record - If your shares are registered direclly in your name with the Company's transfer agent,
Computershare Trust Company, N.A. you are considered, with respect to those shares, the stockholder of record, and
these proxy materials are being sent direclly to you by the Company. As the slockholder of recard, you have the right
to grant your voling proxy direclly to the Company’s designated proxyholders or o vole in person at the meeling. The
Company has enclosed or sent a proxy card for you to use together with the notice of meeting and this proxy statement.

» Beneficial Owner - If your shares are held in a brokerage account or by another nominee, you are considered ihe ben-
eficial owner of shares held in street name, and these proxy materials are being forwarded to you together with a vol-
ing instruction card. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker, trustee, or nominee how to vote
and are also invited to attend the annual meeting. Since a beneficial owner is nol the stockholder of record, you may
not vote these in person al the meeting unless you obtain a "legal proxy” from the broker, trustee, or nominee that holds
your shares, giving you the right to vote the shares at the meeling. Your broker, trustee, or nominee has enclosed or
provided voting instructions for you to use in directing the broker, trustee, or nominee how to vole your shares.

How will my proxy be voted?

Your proxy, when properly signed and returned to us, and not revoked, will be voted in accordance with your instructions
relating to the election of directors and on Proposal 2. We are not aware of any other matter that may be property pre-
sented other than the election of directors and Proposal 2. I any other matier is properly presented, the persons named
in the enclosed form of proxy will have discretion 1o vote in their best judgment,

What if | don’t mark the boxes on my proxy?

Unless you give other instructions on your form of proxy, the persons named as proxies will vote in accordance with the
recommendations of the Board of Directors. The Board's recommendation is set forth together with the description of
each Proposal in this Proxy Statement. In summary, the Board recommends a vote FOR:

o The election of William G. Howard, William W. Staunton, Ii, Eric A. Balzer, William L. George, Jack L. Saltich, Theodore
J. Coburn, and Eric Kuo as directors. )

« The ratification of the appointment of Ehrhardt Keefe Steiner & Hottman PC as our independent auditors for the fiscal
year ending December 31, 2008.

Can i go to the annual meeting if | vote by proxy?

Yes. Attending the Annual Meeting does not revoke the proxy. However, you may revoke your proxy at any time before itis
actually voted by giving written notice to the secretary of the Annual Meeting or by delivering a later dated proxy.




Will my vote be public?

No. As a matter of policy, stockholder proxies, ballots and tabulations that identify individual stockholders are kept confi-
dential and are only availabte as actually necessary to meet legal requirements.

STOCKHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY ARE REQUESTED TO COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE, AND PROMPTLY RETURN
THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY CARD IN THE ENCLOSED PRE-ADDRESSED ENVELOPE. SHARES OF COMMON
STOCK REPRESENTED BY A PROPERLY EXECUTED PROXY RECEIVED PRIOR TO THE VOTE AT THE ANNUAL
MEETING AND NOT REVOKED WILL BE VOTED AT THE ANNUAL MEETING AS DIRECTED BY THE PROXY. IT IS
NOT ANTICIPATED THAT ANY MATTERS OTHER THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THE PROXY STATEMENT WILL BE
PRESENTED AT THE ANNUAL MEETING. IF OTHER MATTERS ARE PRESENTED, PROXIES WILL BE VOTED AT
THE DISCRETION OF THE PROXY HOLDERS.

Deadline for Receipt of Stockholder Proposals

Proposals of stockholders of the Company, which are intended to be presented by such stockholders at the next annual
meeting of stockholders of the Company to be held after the 2008 Annual Meeling, must be received by the Company no
later than December 15, 2008 or within a reasonable time prior to the Company's filing of its proxy materials, in order that
they may be included in the proxy statement and form of proxy relaling to the 2609 Annual Meeting. It is recommended
that stockholders submitting proposals direct them to the Secretary of the Company at 1850 Ramtron Drive, Colorado
Springs, Colorado 80921 by certified mail, return receipt requested, in order to ensure timely delivery. No such proposals
were received with respect to the Annual Meseting scheduled for May 22, 2008.

PROPOSAL 1 - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nominees

A board of seven directors will be elected at the Annual Meeting. Unless otherwise instructed, proxy holders will vote the
proxies received by them for the seven nominees named below, all of whom are currently directors of the Company. Itis
not expected that any nominee will be unable or will decline to serve as a director. If any nominee of the Company is
unable or declines to serve as a director at the time of the Annual Meeting, the proxies will be voted for any nominee who
shall be designated by the then members of the Board of Directors to fill the vacancy. In the event additional persons are
nominated for election as directors, the proxy holders intend to vote all proxies received by them for the nominees listed
below and not for a greater number of persons than the number of nominees listed below. The term of office of each per-
son elected as a director at the Annual Meeting will continue until the next annual meeting of stockholders and such time
as his successor is duly elected and qualified or until his earlier resignation, removal or death.

The names of the nominees, who constitute all of the current directors, and certain information about them, are set forth
below:

Name Age Paosilion(s} with the Company
William G, Howard(xa@) 66 Chairman of the Board
William L. George() 65 Director, Chairman of the Nominating
and Governance Committee
Jack L. Saltichtx2 ' 64 Director, Chairman of the Compensation Committee
Theedere J. Cobum{i¥ 54 Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee
Eric Kuo® : 56 Director
William W. Staunton 60 Director, Chief Executive Officer
Eric A. Balzer 59 Director, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary




(1} Member of the Audit Committee

(2) Member of the Compensation Committee

(3) Member of the Nominating and Governance Committee

(4) Mr. Kuo was appointed to the Board effective March 3, 2008,

Afl directors and executive officers are elected by the Board of Directors for term which continues until the next annual
statutory meeting of the stockholders.

Dr. William G. Howard has served as a director since July 1984. Since September 1990, Dr. Howard has been an inde-
pendent engineering consultant to various entities, including SEMATECH, the Semiconductor Industry Association and
Dow Coming. From October 1987 until December 1980, he served as a Senior Fellow at the National Academy of
Engineering while on leave from Motorola. From 1969 to 1990, Dr. Howard was employed by Motorola where he most
recently served as Corporale Senior Vice President and Director of Research and Development. Dr. Howard is a member
of the National Academy of Engineering and a fellow of the Institute of Electrical Engineers and of the American
Association for the Advancement of Science. Dr. Howard is Chairman of Thunderbird Technologies, a private company
developing new transistor technologies, and is a director of Xilinx, Inc. (XLNX), a public company that manufactures inte-
grated circuits.

Dr. William L. George became a director of the Company in August 2005. Since June 2007, Dr. George has served as
Executive Vice President, Manufacturing Services, of ON Semiconductor, a supplier of performance power solutions.
From August 1999 until June 2007, Dr. George served as Execulive Vice President of Operations for ON Semiconductor.

From June 1997 until July 1999, Dr. George served as corporate vice president and director of Manufacturing for

Motorola's Semiconductor Components Group. Dr. George served as a Supervisory Director of Metron Technology, a

global supplier of semiconductor equipment and materials, from October 2003 until it was acquired by Applied Materials,
Inc. in October 2004. Dr. George received a B.S. degree in Metallurgical Engineering from the University of Oklahoma
and a Ph.D. in Materials Science from Purdue University. Dr. George is a director of Silicon Image, Inc. (SIMG), a public
company that designs and develops mixed-signal integrated circuits.

Mr. Jack L. Saltich has been a member of our Board of Directors since August 2005, Mr. Saltich is a retired executive with
over 30 years of experience. From July 1999 until his retirement in August 2005, he was President and Chief Executive
Officer of Three Five systems Inc., a technology company specializing in the design, development, and manufacturing of
custom LCD displays and display systems. From 1993 to 1999, Mr. Saltich served as a Vice President with Advanced
Micro Devices ("AMD"), where his last position was General Manager of AMD's European Microelectronics Center in
Dresden, Germany. From 1971 o 1988, Mr. Saltich served in a number of capacities with Motorola Inc., culminating in his
position as Vice President and Director of the Company's Advanced CMOS Product R&D Laboratory. Mr. Saltich also
serves on the board of directors of four other public companies, Immersion Corporation (IMMR), Leadis Technology
{LDIS), Atmel Corporation (ATML), and InPlay Technologies (NPLA), is Chairman of Vitex Systems Inc., a private com-
pany, and serves on the Technical Advisory Board for DuPont Electronic Materials Business. Three-Five Systems, Inc.
filed a voluntary petition for bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code on September 8, 2005. Mr. Saltich
received both a bachelor and masters degrees in electrical engineering from the University of lllinois. In 2002, he
received a distinguished alumni award from the University of lilinois.

Mr. Theodore J. Cobum joined the Company as a director in September 2005. Since August 1991, Mr. Cobum has served
as president of the Cobum Capital Group, a boutique investment bank based in New York City. From April 2005 until May
2007, Mr. Cobum was a partner of Triton Real Estate Partners, a real estate development company. He serves as trustee
of the Allianz Global Investors Mutual Fund Complex and a director of Nicholas-Applegate Fund, Inc. Since July 2007, Mr.
Cobum has served as execulive vice president of Nations Academy, a private education management company. From
March 2006 to January 2007, Mr. Cobumn was execulive vice president of Edison Schools Inc., a privale educational man-
agement company. From March 2002 1o August 2003, Mr. Coburn was senior vice president and head of the Domestic
Corporate Client Group at The Nasdag Stock Market, Inc. Mr. Coburn received a B.S. degree in Economics and Finance
from the University of Virginia; an M.B.A. degree from Columbia's Graduate School of Business; and a Master of Divinity
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degree, a Masters degree in Education, and a Certificate of Advanced Studies in Cognitive Development from Harvard
University.

Mr. Eric Kuo joined us as a director in March 2008. From April 2003 until his retirement in December 2007, he served as
president and managing director of Fairchild Semiconductor (HK) Lid. (FCS), a public company that provides high per-
formance semiconductors optimize energy for various product-applications. In that capacity, Mr. Kuo was respansible for
defining and implementing the region's strategic business plan and served as the point person for Fairchild
Semiconductor's Asia Pacific investments, acquisitions, divestitures and joint ventures. From August 2001 to March 2003,
he served as Senior Vice President and Managing Director of Fairchild Semiconductor (HK) Ltd. Mr. Kuo holds both a
BSc in Management from National Chung Hsin University in Taiwan and an MBA from Golden Gate University in San
Francisco.

Mr. William W. Staunton joined us as a director and our Chief Executive Officer in December 2000. Prior to joining us, Mr.
Staunton served as Chief Operating Officer of Maxwell Technologies, which designs and manufactures multi-chip modules
and board products for commercial satellite applications, from March 1999 until December 2000. Mr. Staunton was
Executive Vice President of Valor Eleclronics Inc. from April 1996 until February 1999, Valor Electronics designs and
manufactures magnetic filter products for use in local area networks and communications products. Mr. Staunton holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from Utah State University.

Mr. Eric A. Balzer was named our Chief Financial Officer in October 2004. Mr. Balzer has served as one of our direclors
since September 1998, From November 1999 until October 2004, Mr. Balzer was a retired executive. From January
1990 until his retirement in November 1999, Mr. Balzer served as Senior Vice President of Operations for Advanced
Energy Industries, Inc. a company that develops, manufactures and markets power conversion devices for the semicon-
ductor equipment industry. Mr. Balzer is a director of Across America Real Estate Development (AARD.OB), whichis a
public company, involved in real estate development, Across America Real Estate Exchange, Inc. (AAEX.OB), a public
shell company, and Intermet Corporation, a private company, that is an independent makers of castings for aulomakers.
Mr. Balzer holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Finance from the University of Colorado.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE
STOCKHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE ELECTION OF EACH OF
THE NOMINEES NAMED ABOVE

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

We pay each of our non-employee directors an annual retainer of $12,000, plus $1,500 for each Board of Directors meet-
ing attended in person by those directors who reside in the United States. Members of our Board of Directors who reside
outside of the United States receive $2,500 for each Board of Directors meeting attended in person. Non-employee direc-
tors also receive $1,000 for each telephonic board meeting attended. The Chairman of the Board of Directors is paid an
annual retainer of $50,000.

Effective January 1, 2008, the annual retainer received by our non-employee directors increased to $20,000 from $12,000
in 2007, which is allocated as $12,000 in cash and $8,000 paid in restricted stock awards, the value determined as of the
date of grant, The cash retainer fees are paid monthly on a ralable basis.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee receives an additional $15,000 cash annual retainer. During 2007, Audit Committee
members received an additional $6,000 cash annual retainer. These additiona! fees are paid monthly on a ratable basis.

The Chairman of the Compensation Commitiee receives an additional $7,000 cash annual retainer. Effective January 1,

2008, the cash annuat retainer for the Compensation Commitlee members increased to $3,500 from $2,000 in 2007.
These additional fees are paid monthly on a ratable basis.
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Effective January 1, 2008, the cash annual retainer for the Chairman of the Nominating and Govemance Committee
increased to $4,000 from $3,000 in 2007. During 2007, Nominaling and Governance Committee members received an
additional $2,000 cash annual retainer. These additional fees are paid monthly on a ratable basis.

Directors are also reimbursed for reasonable expenses for attending Board of Directors meetings. Non-employee direc-
tors are eligible to be granted stock awards under our 2005 Incentive Award Pian.

We do not have a formal policy conceming the granting of stock awards to non-employee directors; however, we may con-
sider adopting such a policy in the future. In February 2003, our Board approved the practice that the Chairman of the
Board would receive two times the number of stock option awards granted to non-employee directors generally at the time
any such stock option awards are granted. No stock options were granted to non-employee directors during 2007,

Perquisites and Other Personal Benefits. We do not provide any guantifiable perquisites and other persona! benefits to
non-employee directors.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION FOR 2007

Namet1x2) Fees Eamed or Paid in Cash (§)  Total {$)
William G, Howard 59,999 59,939
William L. George 24,083 24,083
Jack L. Saltich 35,583 35,583
Theodore J. Cobumn 33,583 33,583

(1) Mr. Kuo was elected to the Board of Direclors on March 3, 2008.

{2} No equity awards were granted to non-employee directors during 2007.

DIRECTOR QUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END 2007

Stock Option Stock Option
Awards Awards Restricted
Nametl!¥2 Exercisable (#) Unexercisable (#)  Stock Awards (#)
William G. Howard 484,000 0 0
William L. George 150,000 0 0
Jack L. Saltich 150,000 0 0
Theodore J. Cobum 150,000 0 0

(1) Mr. Kuo was elected to the Board of Directors on March 3, 2008,

{2) No equity awards were granted to non-employee direciors during 2007.
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INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES

The Board of Direclors currently consists of seven directors. The Board of Directors held a total of eight meetings during
2007. Each director attended at least 75% of the aggregate of the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors held
during 2007. All committee members attended at least 75% of the aggregate cf the total number of meetings held by all
committees of the Board of Directors on which he served during 2007. While we do not have a formal policy regarding
the attendance of directors at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders, all directors are encouraged to attend. One non-
employee director and both employee directors of the Board of Direclors attended last year's Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

The Board of Directors consists of a majority of "independent directors” as such term is defined in The Nasdaq Stock
Market's Marketplace Rules. The Board of Directors has determined that Dr. William G. Howard, Dr. William L. George,
Mr. Jack L. Saltich, Mr. Theodore J. Cobum and Mr. Eric Kuo are independent directors in accordance with the iisting
requirements of NASDAQ. In making this determination, the directors reviewed and discussed information provided by
the directors and the Company with regard to each director's business and personal activilies as they may relate to us.

The National Electrical Benefit Fund (the "Fund”), which as of April 15, 2008 beneficially held 9.3% of our outstanding
common stock, is entitled to designate one member of our Board of Directors as long as the Fund owns shares of our
common stock equal to or greater than five percent (5%) of our outstanding common stock. At this time, the Fund has not
designated an individua! to serve as a director on our Board.

The three standing committees of the Board are the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and the Nominating and
Govemance Committee. The Board has appointed only independent directors to the Audit, Compensation and
Nominating and Governance Committees.

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee during 2007 were Commitlee Chairman Mr. Coburn, Dr. Howard, and Mr. Saltich.
There were seven meetings of the Audit Committee during 2007. The Audit Committee is responsible for:

» Appointing, approving the fees of and assessing the independence of our independent registered public accounting firm;
» Overseeing the work of our independent registered public accounting firm, including through receipt of reports from the
independent registered public accounting firm and information received in respect to other non-audit related services

that the auditors may be asked to perform;

« Reviewing and discussing our annual audited financial statements and related disclosures with management and the
independent registered public accounting firm;

+ Reviewing our quarterly unaudited financial statements;

o Coordinating oversight of our intemal controls over financial reporting, disclosure controls and procedures and code of
conduct;

¢ Overseeing our internal audit functions;
« Establishing procedures for the receipt and retention of accounting related complaints and concemns;

e Meeting independently with our independent registered public accounting firm;
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» Reviewing any related party transactions; and
» Preparing the required Audit Committee report, which is provided on page 32 of this proxy statement.

Each Audit Committee member is considered “independent” as defined in The Nasdaq Stock Market's Marketplace Rules
and Securities and Exchange Commission reguiations. Ouring 2007, the Board of Directors determined that based on the
credentials of Mr. Theodore J. Cobumn, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Cobum qualified as an "audit committee
financial expert” within the meaning of Securities and Exchange Commission regulations.

The Audit Committee has adopted a written charter for the Audit Committee and a copy is filed as Appendix A to this
Proxy. The Audit Committee Charter is also available on our website, www.ramtron.com. This matenial is available in print
to any stockholder who requests it in writing by contacting our Corporate Secretary at 1850 Ramtron Drive, Colorado
Springs, Colorado 80921.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee develops compensation policies and implements compensation programs, makes recom-
mendations annually conceming salaries and incentive compensation, awards stock options and restricted stock to offi-
cers and employees under our stock incentive plans and otherwise recommends compensation tevels and performs such
other functions regarding compensation as the Board of Directors may delegate. Compensation for our named executive
officers each year is usually determined prior to the first quarter of the relevant year. When determining recommendations
for annual compensation levels and targets, the Compensation Committee considers competitive market data and estab-
lishes compensation based on these factors o in the case of our named executive officers, makes recommendations to
our Board of Directors, who then act as a whole to set compensation based on these factors. The values of each compo-
nent of tota! direct compensation (base salary, target annual cash incentive and equity awards} for the current year, as
well as total annual compensation for the prior year (including equity holdings, potential change of control payments and
vested benefits) are all considered collectively by our Compensation Committee as part of this process.

Our Compensation Committee has the authority 1o engage the services of outside advisors, experts and others {0 assist
our Compensation Committee in determining the compensation of our executive officers. Qur Compensation Committee
may, from time fo time, delegate cerain authority to authorized persons intemally, including our human resources depart-
ment, lo camy out certain administrative duties. The Compensation Commitiee holds executive sessions (with no members
of management present) at the majority of its meetings.

The Compensation Committee is currently composed of Committee Chairman Mr. Saltich, Or. Howard and Dr. George,
each of whom is independent under Nasdagq listing standards. The Compensation Committee met four times during 2007.

Nominating and Governance Committee

The members of the Nominating and Governance Committee during 2007 were Committee Chairman Dr. George,
Dr. Howard and Mr. Cobum. The Nominating Committee held one meeting in 2007. The Nominating and Govemnance
Committee is responsible for:

o Making regular and meaningful contacts throughout the year with the Chairman of the Board, other committee chair-
persons and members of senior management;
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o The development and participation in a process for ongoing review of corporate governance issues of the Company and
recommending corporate governance principles to the Board of Directors. The Committee has the authority to obtain
and utilize resources the Committee deems necessary, including independent counse! and advisors;

« The establishment of the criteria for board membership, including the size and structure of our Board and Board
Committees, and evaluating and considering potential candidates, including those suggested by our stockholders;

o Reviewing, discussing and assessing the performance of our Board and its committees and making recommendalions
for improvement of performance; and

o The periodic review and assessment of non-employee director compensation for service on the Board and its commit-
lees and recommending any changes in compensation considered appropriate.

The Nominating and Govemance Committee Charter is available on our website at www.ramtron.com. This material is
available in print to any stockholder who requests it in writing by contacting our Corporale Secretary at 1850 Ramiron
Drive, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80921.

With regard fo the 2009 annuat meeting of stockholders, any stockholder director nominee submissions must be received
by the Corporate Secretary no laler than the date by which stockholder proposals for such annual meeting must be
received as described above under the heading "Deadline for Receipt of Stockholder Proposals.”

STOCKHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has implemented a process by which our stockholders may send written communications to the
Chairman or to the Board's attention. Any stockholder may communicate with members of the Board of Directors by mail
addressed to an individual member of the Board, to the full Board, or to a particular committee of the Board, at the follow-
ing address: ¢/o Ramtron Intemational Corporation, Atin: Chairman of the Beard, 1850 Ramtron Drive, Colorado Springs,
Colorado 80921. This information is also available on the Company’s website at www.ramtron.com. The Corporate
Secretary has been instructed by the Board to prompiy forward all communications so received to the Chairman, the full
Board, or the individual Board member(s) specifically addressed in the communication.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Our executive officers and their ages are as follows:

Name Age Position(s)

Wiltiam W. Staunton 60 Director, Chief Executive Officer

Eric A. Balzer 59 Director, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary
Robert R. Djokovich 51 Chief Operating Officer

Officers are appointed by and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors. For information conceming Mr. Staunton
and Mr. Balzer, see "Nominees" above.

Mr. Djokovich joined the Company in January 2006 as Sr. Vice President of Product Realization and was appointed Chief
Operating Officer in April 2007. From April 1980 to December 2005, Mr. Djokovich was employed by Advanced Energy !
Industries and held various positions, serving most recently as Vice President of Operations Engineering prior to his ;
departure. Advanced Energy Industries is a company that develops, manufactures, and markets power conversion '
devices for the semiconductor equipment industry. Mr. Djokovich served on the Board of Directors of the US Olympic
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Committee from 2000 to 2004 and served as President of USA Team Handball from 2000 to 2004. Mr. Djokovich holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering from the United States Air Force Academy.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS AND MANAGEMENT
The following table sets forth certain information regarding beneficial ownership of our Commen Stock as of April 15, 2008

by: (i} each person who is known by us to own beneficially more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our Common
Stock; (ii) each of our directors; (iii} each of our executive officers; and {iv) all directors and executive officers as a group.

Name and Address Shares of Common
Beneficial Owneri! Stock Beneficially Owned@ Percent of Class®
National Electrical Benefit Fund 2,551,377 9.3%

1125 15th Street, N.W., Room 912
Washington, D.C, 20005

Cortina Asset Management, LLC 2,489,072% 94
330 East Kilboum Avenue

Suite 850

Milwaukee, W1 53202

William W, Staunton 1,029,630 3.8
Eric A. Balzer 543,5260) 20
William G. Howard 485,754 1.8
William L. George 151,76409 ¢
Jack L. Saltich 151,75400) '
Theodore J. Cobum 161,754 '
Eric Kuo 1,42802 :
Robert R. Djokovich 174 67703 b

All directors and executive

officers as a group (8 persons) 2,690,2770% 94

* Less {han one percent
(1) For directors and officers, the address is ¢fo Ramtron International Corporation, 1850 Ramiron Drive, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80921.

(2) Such persons or enlities have sole voling and invesimeni power with respect to all shares of Common Slock shown as being beneficially owned
by them, subject to community property laws where applicable, except as otherwise indicated in the information contained in these foctnotes.

{3) Pursuant to Rule 13d-3(d)(1)(B) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, shares of Common Stock issuabla upon the exercise of
wamants or stock options held by each person or entity sel forth in the table which are currently or become exercisable within 60 days are
included in the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding for purpases of determining the percentage ownership of such person or entity.

{4) Includes: (i) 1,638,680 shares of Common Stock owned by the National Electrical Benefit Fund (the "Fund”); (i) 905,697 shares of Common
Stock issuable upon exercise of warrants held by the Fund; and (jii} 7,000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of vested oplions
held by the Fund. The trustees of the Fund share voting and dispositive powers as to such shares.

(5} Contina Asset Management, an investment advisor, beneficially owns 789,072 shares over which it possesses sole voting power and 1,700,000

shares as to which Cortina has dispositive power, based on information set forth in a Schedule 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 14, 2007.
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(6) Includes: (i) 80,880 shares of Common Stock owned directly; (G) 783,750 shares of Common Stock issuable to Mr. Staunton upon exercise of
options that are vested and exercisable within 60 days from April 15, 2008; and (iii} 165,000 shares of restricted stock that will only vest upon
the achievement of certain performance targets pricr to December 31, 2009.

(7) Includes: (i) 127,026 shares of Common Stock owned directly, (ii) 276,500 shares of Commen Stock issuable to Mr. Balzer upen exercise of
options that are vested and exercisable within 60 days from April 15, 2008; and (iii) 140,000 shares of testricted stock that will only vest upon
the achievement of certain performance targets prior to December 31, 2009.

(8) Includes: (i) 1,754 shares of Common Stock awned direclly; and (if) 484,000 shares of Common Stock issuable to Dr. Howard upon exercise of
options that are vested and exercisable within 60 days from April 15, 2008.

(9) Includes: (i) 1,754 shares of Common Stock owned directly; and (i}) 150,000 shares of Common Stock issuable to Dr. George upon exercise of
options that are vested and exercisable withln 60 days from April 15, 2008,

{10) Includes: (i) 1,754 shares of Common Stock owned directly; and (i) 150,000 shares of Common Stock issuable to Mr. Saltich upon exercise of
options that are vested and exercisabte within 80 days from April 15, 2008,

(1) Includes: {i) 1,754 shares of Common Stock owned directly; and (ii) 150,000 shares of Common Stock issuable to Mr. Coburn upon exercise of
options that are vested and exercisable within 80 days from Apait 15, 2008.

(12} On April 1, 2008, Mr. Kuo was issued a restricted stock award for 1,428 shares and such sharas will fully vest as of April 30, 2008.

(13) includes: (i) 34,677 shares of Common Stock owned directly; (i) 50,000 shares of Common Stock issuable to Mr. Dickovich upon exercise of
options that are vested and exercisable within 60 days from April 15, 2008; and (iil} 90,000 shares of restricted stock that will only vest upon the
achievement of certain performance targets prior to December 31, 2008.

(14) Inciudes: (i} 251,027 shares of Common Stock owned directly; (ii) 2,044,250 shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of options that
are vested and exercisable within 80 days from Aprit 15, 2008; and (iif) 385,000 shares cf restricted stock that will only vest upon the achieve-

ment of certain performance targets prior to December 31, 2003 by executive officers of the Company.
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table summarizes information as of December 31, 2007, relating to equity compensation plans of the
Company pursuant to which common stock is authorized for issuance:

Number of securities Number of securities
to be issued Weighted-average remaining available for
upon exercise of exercise price of future issuance under equity
outstanding options, outstanding options,  compensation plans (excluding
warrants, and rights warrants, and rights  securities reflected in column (a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holdersin 5,683,445 $3.38 891,089
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders 413,746 $3.94 14,184

Totai 6,097,191 $3.42 905,273

(1) Includes options granted under the Company's 1995 Stock Option Plan, as amended (the *1995 Plan®), and the 2005 Incentive Award Plan {the
*2005 Plan”), collective, the "Plans.” The options granted under the Plans become exercisable in full of in instaliments pursuant to the terms of
each grant. Directors and officars of the Company are efigible to participata in these Plans.

(2) OnAugust 17, 1999, our Board of Directors adopted the 1999 Stock Option Plan under which a total of 700,000 shares of the Company's
Common Stock were authorized for issuance pursuant to the exercise of stock options granted there under. The exercise price of afl non-quali-
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fied stock options mus! be equal to at least 95% of the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant and the maximum term of
each grant is ten years. Options granted become exercisable in fult or in instaliments pursuant o the terms of each grant. Directors and execu-
tive officers of the Company are not eligible to participate in the 1999 Plan. We did not issue any stock oplions under the 1939 Stock Option
Pian during 2007

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

Our objective is to attract, retain and molivale highly qualified executives with compelitive compensation packages and
reward them for achieving the goals we set for our company and the individual execulive officers. Our executive officer
compensation program supports our business slrategy with the goat of enhancing the value of our Company by improving
top-line results while remaining focused on cash flow performance and increased operating efficiency.

Our compensation program emphasizes a pay-for-performance concep!, meaning an individual’'s compensation and career
advancement depends upon meeting and exceeding pre-established Company objectives and goals. The Company's
financial performance, as well as the individual execulive's performance, are considered when determining an individual
executive’s compensation.

Role of Compensation Committee and Administration of Compensation Program

Our Compensation Committee is responsible for recommending and implementing our compensation program for our
Chief Executive Officer and our other executive officers. Each year, the Compensation Committee reviews any reports
from outside consullants and any other market data gathered and recommendations from the Chief Executive Officer with
respect to his direct reports and makes recommendations on compensation for the named executive officers 1o the Board
of Directors. The Committee also approves the grant of any discretionary equity-based benefits such as stock options and
restricted stock to our named executive officers. Qur long-term incentive programs consist of restricted stock and stock
option awards. Our current 2007 challenge grants of restricted stock awards provide management incentives for perform-
ance over a three-year period from 2007 through 2009.

In 2007, the Compensation Committee again hired an independent executive compensation consultant, DolmatConnell &
Partners, to review market data and make recommendations regarding the competitiveness of our executive compensa-
tion programs with respect to our 2008 executive compensation program. DolmatConnell & Partners reported the finding
ol its review directly to the Compensation Committee and provided relevant markel data from the Company's peer group
against which the competitiveness of our total compensation, base salary, annual bonuses, and long-term incentives were
compared. The peer group includes U.S.-based public companies in the semiconductor industry, without controlling equity
holders, with revenues of $30M to $120M (approximately one half to 2 times the Company's estimated 2008 revenue guid-
ance) and positive revenue growth. There were 12 peer companies considered in the study conducled in the fourth quar-
ter of 2007: Anaren, Inc.; California Micro Oevices Corporation; Exar Corporation; hiffn, inc.; IntriCon Corporation; Leadis
Technology, Inc.; Maxell Technologies, inc.; Microtune, Inc.; MIPS Technologies, inc.; NelLogic Microsystems, Inc.;
Peerless Systems Corporation; and Wireless Telecom Group, Inc.

The December 2006 compensation study used for 2007 compensation decisions showed that our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer base salaries were at the 59th percentile, and the 50th percentile, respectively, of the peer
group used for this study for similar positions and functions. However, variable compensation {actual total cash) and his-
torical slock awards (long-term incentives) were below market at approximately the 25th percentile relative to our peer
group, which were considered in the Committee's determination of compensation for 2007 and beyond. The study also
showed that the senior management's base salaries were at the market median of the reviewed peer group for their posi-
tion and functions, however, variable compensation and the historic stock awards were at the 25th percentile, on average.
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The Compensation Committee concluded that in light of the findings, an adjustment would be made to bring tota! compen-
sation for 2007 in line with peer group statistics. The adjustment made by the Compensation Committee was in the form
of restricted stock awards granted to our named executive officers. On December 19, 2006 restricted stock awards were
granted with a one year vesting period as follows: Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Staunton, received 90,000 shares; Chief
Financial Officer, Mr. Balzer, received 60,000 shares; and Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Djokovich, received 32,500 shares.
These restricted stock awards were fully vested on December 19, 2007.

Executive Compensation Components for 2007

Our executive officer compensation program consisted of:

o Base salary;

« Annual cash incentive bonuses;

o Equily awards;

» Long-term incentive plan consisting of reslricted stock awards,

» Employee benefit plans generally available 1o our employees, including medical and dental insurance, life insurance and
disability plans;

¢ 401(k) Retirement Plan company matching contribulions; and
¢ Perquisites and other benefits.

Impact of 2007 Individual Performance

The Compensation Committee evaluates the performance of our Chief Executive Officer annually. The Compensation
Committee generally considers the same factors in determining the Chief Executive Officer's compensation as it does for
other executive officers, including both subjective and objective factors. Each year, the Compensation Committee reviews
any reports from outside consultants and any other market dala gathered and racommendations from the Chief Executive
Officer with respect to his direct reports and makes recommendations on compensation for the named executive officers
to the Board of Directors. The independent directors then meet as a group in executive session to review the named
executive officers performance and the recommendations of the Committee, and uses this review to determine the base
salary, annual incentive cash bonus and equity awards.

Our Chief Executive Officer reviews the performance of our Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer annually.
He bases his evalualion on his knowledge of each execulive officer's performance and feedback provided by each execu-
tive officer's peers and direct reports. In addition, our Chief Executive Officer also reviews the compensation data gath-
ered from the compensation surveys provided by DolmatConnell & Partners, and after considering all relevant information,
makes recommendations to the Committee on each executive officer’s base salary, annual incentive cash bonuses and
equity awards for our named executive officers for curent year and future year compensation decisions.

Design of our Compensation Programs

The Compensation Committee considers multiple factors when determining recommendations for the amount of total com-
pensation, which includes base salary, annual incentive cash bonus and long-term incentive plans. These multiple factors
include peer group compensation, company performance, individual performance, and the relative posilion. However,
compensation may vary from these guidelines based upon the rcle of the position within our organization, and the execu-
tive's experience and performance in achieving objectives.
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The Compensation Commitiee believes thal the compensation package for executive officers should consist of the follow-
ing principal components, which underlie our pay-for-performance philosophy:

« Provide competitive compensation to aftract and retain executive talent with the capability to lead within a global com-
pany,

« Provide annual base salary competitive with peer group companies who are similar to the Company in terms of indus-
iry and revenue.

» Provide incentives for individual initiative, leadership and achievement with annual target incentive cash bonuses, the
amount of which is dependent on our financial performance;

¢ Long-term equily programs that consists of stock option or other forms of equity awards;

¢ Long-term equity incentive compensation plan consisting of performance-contingent restricted stock awards that
encourage management to focus on shareholder return;

» Promote executive ownership of our common stock to further align executive's financial interest with stockholders’ inter-
est; and

e Appropriate compensation in the event of a change-in-control related termination.

Base Salary

Base salaries are designed to provide executive officers with a level of predictability and stability with respect to a portion
of their total compensation package.

When the Committee determines recommendations regarding the executive officers' base salaries, they lake into account
each officer's role and leve! of responsibility at the Company. Executive officers with the highest level of responsibility
have the lowest percentage of their compensation fixed as base salary and the highest percentage of their compensation
at risk.

Recommendations regarding adjustments to base salary are considered at the Compensation Commitiee's meeting in
December of each year. At the end of 2007, changes to the base salaries of our executive officers for 2008 reflected both
a review based on their performance and competitive comparisons. '

2007 Increase 2008 Increase
Name Base Salary($)  from Prior Year(%) Base Salary($)  from Prior Year{%)
William W. Staunton
Chief Executive Officer 400,000 12 408,000 2
Eric A. Balzer
Chief Financial Officer 292,367 10 306,600 5
Robert R. Djokovich
Chief Operating Officer 246,100 7 260,000 5.7

Based on peer group data, base salaries of the listed officers were, on average, positioned between the 50th and 75th
percentiles of our peer group.
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Incentive-Based Compensation

Our pay-for-performance program includes performance-based cash compensation that rewards slrong financial perform-
ance and equity awards that reward the achievement of long-term performance. Annual incentive cash payments are
determined primarily by our financial results and are not linked directiy to the Company's stock price performance. The
Committee believes that targeting lotal cash compensation at the 75th percentile is appropriate because of the high pro-
portion of cash compensation that is variable and at risk.

The Commitiee determines recommendations regarding the amount of equity grants and long-term grants based on its
subjective consideration of factors such as relative job scope, expected future contributions to the growth and develop-
ment of the company, and the competitiveness of grants relative to our peer group. When evaluating future contributions,
the Committee projects the value of the executive officer’s fulure performance based on the officer’s expecled career
development.

2007 Annual Incentive Cash Bonus Program

Participants in the 2007 Annual Incentive Cash Bonus Program include our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Operating Officer, certain Senior Vice President and Vice Presidents, and other non-executive employees.

Revenue, pre-tax net income and net income percentage, excluding stock-based compensation expense were key finan-
cial components of our 2007 Annual Incenlive Cash Bonus Program. The financial targets under the 2007 Annual
Incentive Cash Bonus Program were $42.1 million in revenue ard 3.5% of pre-tax net income, excluding stock-based
compensation expense. In 2007, our revenue was $51 million, an increase of 26% compared to 2006 and pre-tax net
income, excluding slock-based compensation, was $4.7 million, an increase of 213% compared to 2006. The target
bonus payout for each execulive officer was 70% of salary for our CEQ, Mr. Staunton, 60% of salary for our CFO, Mr.
Balzer, and 50% of salary for our COO, Mr. Djokovich. Bonus payouts were capped al 200%.

The Compensation Committee and Board reviewed the performance against the objectives set forth in the 2007 Annual
Incentive Cash Bonus Program during the first quarter of 2008. Based on 2007 actual financial results, the objectives of
the 2007 Annual Incentive Cash Bonus Program were achieved and bonuses based on these objectives were paid to the
executive officers at 200% of their target bonus payoul percentages during the first quarter of 2008. Cash bonuses were
also paid to certain members of senior management, and non-commissioned employees received a cash bonus, the
amount of the bonus depended on responsibility leve! and individual performance.

2008 Annual Incentive Cash Bonus Program

In February 2008, the Committee and Board approved the financial targets for the Company's 2008 Annual Incentive Cash
Bonus Program. Participants in the 2008 Annual Incentive Cash Bonus Program include our Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer, certain Senior Vice President and Vice Presidents, and other non-execu-
tive employees. The 2008 Annual Incentive Cash Bonus Program requires 100% achievement of certain levels of rev-
enue, pre-lax nel income, net income percentage, excluding stock-based compensation expense prior 10 any payouts
under the plan. The target bonus payout for each executive officer will be 100% of base salary for our CEO, Mr. Staunton;
75% of base salary for our CFQ, Mr. Balzer; and 65% of base salary for our COO, Mr. Djokovich.

The financial targets under the 2008 Annua! Incentive Cash Bonus Program are as follows:

o 24% to 28% total revenue growth year over year
o 10% to 12% pre-tax net income, excluding stock-based compensation expense

The cash bonuses are payable in the first quarter after year-end financial resulls have been issued. The eligible partici-
pants must be employed on the date of bonus payout to participate in the program.
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Equity Awards and Long-term incentives

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors views the granting of performance-based stock awards as a valu-
able incentive that serves 1o attract, retain and motivate executive officers and other key employees, as well as align their
interests more closely with our corporate objectives.

Challenge Grants

The Company's execulive officers and certain members of senior management participate in our 2007 Challenge Grants
Program. The Compensation Committee and Board approved the 2007 Challenge Grants for the period of January 2007
through December 2009,

Under the 2007 Challenge Grants Program, the Committee and Board approved the grant of restricted stock awards to
each of Mr. Staunton, our CEQ; Mr. Balzer, our CFO; and Mr. Djokovich, our COO, subject to the Company’s achievement
of certain operational milestones by no later than December 31, 2009. Mr, Staunton was granted 165,000 shares of
restricled stock, Mr. Balzer was granted 140,000 shares of restricted stock, and Mr. Djokovich was granted 90,000 shares
of restricted stock. The vesting of such restricted stock awards is based upon the achigvement of the long-term incentive

. performance targets approved by the Compensation Committee. The restricted stock awards shall be subject lo no vest-

ing condition other than achievement by the Company of the performance targets before or as of December 31, 2008, and
the full-time employment by the Company of the recipient of a restricted stock award on the fast day of the year in which
the incentive performance target is achieved. If the minimum performance targets for annual revenue, pre-tax net income,
net income percentage, excluding stock-based compensation expense, by year-end 2009 are not realized, or if the recipi-
ent of a restricted stock award is not a full-lime employee of the Company on the last day of the year in which the incen-
tive performance targel is achieved, the restricted stock awards will not vest and such shares will be forfeited. Partial
achievement of the performance targets above a minimum specified level for annual revenue and net income before
stock-based compensation expense will result in partial vesting of the restricled stock awards.

Restriclad Stock Awards

In 2006 and on a limited basis, the Company began granting employees restricted stock awards ("RSA") in addition to
stock options. Stock options provide actual economic vatue lo the holder if the price of our common stock has increased
from the grant date at the time the option is exercised. In contrast, RSAs have economic value when they vest, even if
the slock price declines or stays flat. RSAs assist us in retaining execulive ofiicers because they have more stable value.
Restricted stock generally vests in a one-year period as long as the optionee remains an employee.

In February 2007, based on our Company's accomplishments during 2006, the Compensation Committee and Board
approved a special bonus of restricted stock to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Operating
Officer, members of senior management and certain employees based on individual performance. All such restricted
stock awards vested in February 2008. Mr. Staunion received 27,354 shares, Mr. Balzer received 17,026 shares, and Mr.
Djokovich received 12,278 shares of common stock.

Stock Option Grants

To encourage an optionee to remain in our employ, options generally vest in annual installments over four years. In 2007,
options to purchase an aggregate of 290,000 shares of Common Stock and 451,658 shares of restricted slock were
granted to executive officers, which represented approximately 50% of all options and restricted stock granted lo our
employees in 2007. Information conceming options granted during 2007 to named executive officers is provided in the
table entitled "Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2007 below.
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On December 11, 2007, the Compensation Committee and Board granted annual stock options to our named executive
officers and employees. All such stock option grants have a four year vesting period with 25% of the grant vesting on
December 11, 2008 and annually 25% thereafter and camy an exercise price of $4.07 per share; the exercise price was
the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the grant date. Mr. Staunton received a stock option to purchase
130,000 shares, Mr. Balzer received a stack option to purchase 100,000 shares and Mr. Djokovich received a stock option
to purchase 60,000 shares of common stock.

Retirement and Other Benefits

in order to attract and retain employees and provide support in the event of iliness or injury, we offer all of our employees,
including executive officers, medical and dental coverage, disability insurance and life insurance. All of our executive offi-
cers are enlitled to participate in these plans.

We do not have a defined retirement plan for executives or employees, but instead encourage saving for retirement
through our 401(k) Plan, to which we make matching contributions. Employees may contribute up to the maximum volun-
tary deferral amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Service. In 2007, we contributed 25% of the first 6% of salary con-
tibuted to the plan by those parlicipating employees as a matching contribution. Payment of matching funds is paid to
employees on a quarterly basis and employees must be employed on the last day of the quarter lo receive the matching
contribution. The Committee approved this same program for 2008. All employee contributions are vested upon contribu-
lion and any matching is vested based on years of service. Vesting is 20% each year after the first year of service,

We provide car allowance, air and other travel for executive officers for business purposes only.

Change-in-Control Agreements

Effective April 25, 2007, the Company entered into Change-in-Control Agreements (the "Agreements”) with its executive
officers: William W. Staunton, Chief Executive Officer; Eric A. Balzer, Chief Financial Officer; and Robert R. Djokovich,
Chief Operating Officer {collectively, the "Execulive Officers”). The Company entered into such Agreements to induce and
help assure continuity of management and operations. The Agreements continue in effect until April 25, 2009 and auto-
matically renew for successive one (1) year terms unless notice of non-renewal is given ninety (30) days prior to such
renewal date.

Under the Agreements, executive officers, in the event of termination of the executive’s employment by the Company
within 12 months of a change-in-control, other than for “Cause,” or by the executive for "Good Reason,” will receive:

» Aseverance payment equal to two times current annual base salary;

o An amount equal to the greater of either two times the bonus paid to the executive for the prior fiscal year, or two times
the target bonus for the current year,

o Immediate acceleration of vesting of all outstandmg equity awards (stock optlons and restricted stock) granted to the
execuhve

» Reimbursement for up to 18 months of continued eligibility to participate in medical and health benefit plans on the same
use, terms and conditions in effect for the executive pnor to hisfher termination, plus the cash value of an additional 6
months of the same coverage.

. Reimbursement of any excise taxes imposed under Internal Revenue Code Section 280G.
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2007 Executive Officers Compensation Overview

K Broxy;

Mr. William W. Staunton is our Chief Executive Officer. His compensation in 2007 consisted of an annual salary of
$400,000, $33,605 vacalion cash payout, $30,000 for housing, auto and travel allowances and $3,375 of matching contri-
bution 401(k) funds. Mr. Staunton was paid $560,000 in February 2008, as a bonus for the achievement of the goals of
the 2007 Annual incentive Cash Bonus Program. In December 2007, 90,000 shares of restricted stock vested to

Mr. Staunton as a competitive market adjustment. In February 2007, Mr. Staunton received a restricted stock award of
27,354 shares with a one year vesting period as a special bonus. In February 2007, the Compensation Committee also
approved a restricted stock award of 165,000 shares to Mr. Staunton and vesting of such restricted stock awards is based
upon the achievement of the long-term incentive performance targets before or as of December 31, 2009 and fuli-time
employment on the !ast day of the year in which the incentive performance target is achieved. Partial achievement of the
performance {argets above a minimum specified level for revenue, pre-tax net income, net income percentage, excluding
stock-based compensation expense will result in partial vesting of the restricted stock awards.

Mr. Eric A. Balzer is our Chief Financial Officer. His compensation in 2007 consisted of an annual salary of $292,367,
$7.591 for travel allowance and $3,375 of matching contribution 401(k) funds. Mr. Balzer was paid $350,840 in February
2008, as a bonus for the achievement of the goals of the 2007 Annual Incentive Cash Bonus Program. In December
2007, 60,000 shares of restricted stock vested to Mr. Balzer as a competitive market adjustment. In February 2007,

Mr. Balzer received a restricted stock award of 17,026 shares with a one year vesting period as a special bonus. In
February 2007, the Compensation Committee also approved a restricled stock award of 140,000 shares to Mr. Balzer and
vesting of such restricted stock awards is based upen the achievement of the long-term incentive performance targets
before or as of December 31, 2009 and full-time employment on the last day of the year in which the incentive perform-
ance larget is achieved. Partial achievement of the performance targets above a minimum specified level for revenue,
pre-tax net income, net income percentage, excluding stock-based compensation expense will resull in partial vesting of
the restricted stock awards.

Mr. Robert R. Djokavich is our Chief Operating Officer. His compensation in 2007 consisted of an annual salary of
$246,100 and $3,375 of matching contribution 401(k} funds. Mr. Djokovich was paid $246,000 in February 2008, as a
bonus for the achievement of the goals of the 2007 Annual incentive Cash Bonus Program. In December 2007, 32,500
shares of restricted stock vested to Mr. Djokovich as a competitive market adjustment. In February 2007, Mr. Djokovich
received a restricted stock award of 12,278 shares with a one year vesting period as a special bonus. In February 2007,
the Compensation Committee also approved a restricted stock award of 60,000 shares to Mr. Djokovich and vesting of
such restricted stock awards is based upon the achievement of the long-lerm incentive performance targets before or as
of December 31, 2009 and full-time employment on the last day of the year in which the incentive performance target is
achieved. Partial achievement of the performance targets above a minimum specified level for revenue, pre-tax net
income, net income percentage, excluding stock-based compensation expense will result in partial vesting of the restricted
slock awards.

Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Under Section 162({m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), a publicly held corporation will not
be allowed a federal income tax deduction for compensation paid to the executive officers named in the Summary
Compensation Table to the extent that compensation (including stock-based compensation} paid to a particular officer
exceeds $1 million in any fiscal year unless such compensation was based on performance goals and certain other condi-
tions are satisfied. The Compensation Committee takes the limitations of Section 162(m} into account in making its com-
pensation decisions, but such limitations are not necessarily a determining factor.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

The members of our Compensation Committee during 2007 were Jack L. Saltich, William G. Howard, and William L.
George. None of our executive officers or employees were members of our Compensation Committee during 2007.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Commitiee members reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation Discussion and
Analysis information required by ltem 402(b) of Regulation S-K and contained in this proxy statement, and recommended
to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement for the 2008
Annual Meeting of Stockholders and incorporated into our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007.

Jack L. Sallich, Chair
Wiltiam G. Howard
William L. George
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND OTHER INFORMATION
SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE
The following table sets forth information conceming all compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to our Chief

Execulive Officer, our Chief Financial Officer, and our Chief Operating Officer, during the fiscal years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006.

Non-Equity
Name and Stock Option Incentive Plan All Other
Principal Position Year Salary($) Awards($)  Awards($) Compensation{$) Compensation(3) Total($)
)] {n (2

William W. Staunton 2007 400,000 492,798 172,545 560,000 66,980 1,692,323
Chief Executive Officer 2006 357,706 11,007 84,617 - 61,9684 515,298
Eric A. Balzer 2007 292,367 345653 97,380 350,840 10,9669 1,097,206
Chief Financial Officer 2006 265,788 7,338 51,624 - 24,2946 334 657
Robert R. Djckovich( 2007 246,100 203,295 52,310 246,000 3,375 751,080

Chief Operating Officer

{1) This column reflects the values recognized for stock oplion and restricted stock awards lor financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2007 and thus may include amounts from awards granted during and prior to 2007. Please see a discussion of all
assumptions used in the valuation of these awards in Nate 7 to the consclidated financial statements in our Annual Report an Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2007.

{2)  Accrued bonus for fiscal year 20ﬁ7 paid in 2008,

(3) For fiscal year 2007 includes $33,605 for unused vacation time, $30,000 for housing and car allowances and $3,375 for our matching contribu-
tion 1o our.401(k} Retirement Plan.

{4) For fiscal year 2006 includes $16,801 for unused vacaﬁon time, $41,867 for housing and car allowances and $3,300 for our matching contribu-
tion to our 401(k) Retirement Plan.

{5) For fiscal year 2007 includes 7,531 for frave! to and from our headquarters and $3,375 for our matching contribution to our 401 (k} Retirement
Plan.
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(6) For fiscal year 2006 includes $15.000 for unused vacation time, $5,894 for travel to and from our headquartars and $3,300 for our maid'ung
contribution to our 401(k} Retirement Plan.

{7} Mr. Djokovich was appointed as an executive officer of our Company in April 2007.

(8) Amount paid for our matching contribution to our 401(k} Retirement Plan.

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS FOR 2007
Estimated  Estimated Future Payouts
Future under Equity '
Payouts Incentive Plan Awards(" Grant Date
Under All Other Exercise
Non-Equity Number  Numberof  Stock Awards  All Other Price of Fair Value of
: Incentive of Slock  Securitles Number Option Option Stock and
Grant Awards orlnits  Underlying of Stock Awards{#)  Awards{$/sh) Option Awards($)

Name Date Cash($)  (maximum)#)  Option# or Units{#) n " ()

William W.

Staunton 560,000

212310 27,354 76,865
212307 165,000 ) 463,650
12111107 130,000 407 360,100
EncA.
Balzer 350,840 '
223107 17,026 47,843
212307 140,000 393.400
12111107 100,000 407 277,000
Robert R.
Djokavich 246,000
223107 12,278 34,501
2723/07 90,0004 252,800
1211107 60,000 407 166,200

(1) Al grants to the named executive officers during fiscal 2007 were made under the Company’s 2005 Incentive Award Pian.

(2) The Company appfies the Black-Scholes valuation method to compute the estimated fair value of the stock options and recognizes compensa-
tion expense, net of estimated forfeitures on a straight-line basis so that the award is fully expensed at the vesting date. Restricted stock
awards were valued at the closing price on the date of grant and compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures on a straightdine basis so
that the award is fully expensed al the vesting date.

{3) The vesting of such restricted stock awards is based upon the achievement of long-term incentive performance targets on or priof to

December 31, 2008, and the ful-ime employment by the Company of the recipient of a restricted stock award on the last day of the year In
which the incentive performance target is achieved, If the minimum performance tergets for annual revenue, pre-tax net income, net income
percentage, excluding stock-based compensation expense by year-end 2009 are not realized, or if the recipient of a restricted stock award Is
not a full-time employae of the Company on the last day of the year in which the incentive performance target is achieved, the restricted stock
awards will nol vest and such shares will be forfsited. Partial achievement of the performance targets above a minimum specified level for
annual revenue, pre-tax net income, net income percentage, excluding stock-based compensation expense will result in partiat vesting of the
restricted stock awards, )




OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END 2007

Option Awards Stack Awards
Equity
Incentive
Equity Plan
Incentive Awards:
Plan Market
Awards: or Payout
Number of Value of
Uneamed Ungamed
Number of Number of Shares, Shares,
Securities Securilies Units Units
Underlying Underlying or Other or Other
Unexercised Unexercised Option Option Rights that Rights that
Options (%)’ Options (#) Exersise  Expiration Have Not Have Not
Name Exercisable Unexercisable  Price ($) Datz Vested (#) Vested ($)
()
William W. Staunton 27,3540} 117,622
165,000 709,500
0 130,000 4.070 1211112017
58,750 176,250 720 12/19/2016
50,000 150,000 1910 373012016
150,000 0 3710 12/02/2014
100,000 0 2.320 10/21/2013
100,000 0 3.800 12/03/2012
75,00000 0 1.8680 107116/2011
200,00000 0 5.500 12/15/2010
Eric A. Balzer 17,026 73,212
140,000 602,000
0 100,000 4070 12411112017
40,000 120,000 3.720 12/19/2016
37,500 37,50002) 2.292 1210712015
75,0000 0 3.710 12/02/2014
60,00003 0 3.010 10/26/2014
25,000¢4 0 3.800 12/03/2012
10,00069) 0 7.250 210212011
15,0008 0 7.438 11282010
500000 0 10.563 10/03/2010
5,00008 0 7.406 12/22/2009
400009 0 7.030 9/01/2008
Robert R. Djokovich 12,278@ 52,795
90,0006 387,000
0 60,000+ 4,070 1211112017
20,000 60,0006 720 12/19/2016
15,000 45,000® 1.910 3/30/2016

(1) Based on the closing price as reported on the Nasdaq Global Market on December 31, 2007 of $4.30.
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{2) Resticted stock awards that vest one year from the grant date of February 23, 2007

{3) The vesting of such restricted slock awards is based upon the achisvement of the long-term incentive performance targets on or prior to
December 31, 2009, and the full-ime employment by the Company of the recipient of a restricted stock award on the last day of the year in
which the incentive performance target is achieved. If the minimum performance targets for annual revenue, pre-tax nst income, net income
percentage, excluding stock-based compensation expense by year-end 2009 are not realized, or il the recipient of & restricted stock award is
not a full-ime employee of the Company on the last day of the year in which the incentive performance target is achieved, the restricted stock
awards will no! vest and such shares will be forfeited. Partial achievement of the performance targets above a minimum specified level for
annual revenue, pre-tax net income, net income pem'éntaga, excluding stock-based compensation expense will result in partial vesting of the
restricted stock awards.

{4) Oplion was granted on December 11, 2007 and vests in four equal annual instaliments one year from the date of grant.

(5} Oplion was granted on December 19, 2006 and vests in four equal annual instaliments one year from the date of grant.

{(6) Option was granted on March 30, 2006 and vests in four equal annuel installments one year from the date of grant.

{7} Opfion was granted on December 2, 2004, 25% of the shares vested an December 2, 2005, and the remaining shares vested on December 30,
2005 as a result of our Board of Directors’ approval Lo accelerated vesting of ali options granted with an exercise price greater than $3.50.
Option was fully vested on December 30, 2005.

(8) Option was granted on October 21, 2003, vested in four equal annual installments, and was fully vested on October 21, 2007,

{9) Option-was granted on December 3, 2002, 25,000 shares vested in three equal annual installments, end 25,000 shares vested on December
30, 2005 as a result of our Board of Directors’ approval to accelerated vasting of all options granted with an exercise price greater than $3.50.
Qplion was fully vested on December 30, 2005.

{10) Oplion was granted on Cetober 16, 2001, vested in four equal annual instaliments, and was fully vested on October 16, 2005.

{11) Option was granted on December 14, 2000, 50,000 shares vested on June 15, 2001 and the remaining shares vested in three equal annual
instaliments, and was fully vested on December 15, 2003,

{12) Option was granted on December 7, 2005 and vests in four squal annual instaliments one year from the date of grant,
{13) Option was granted on Cctober 26, 2004, vested in twelve equal monthly instailments, and was fully vested on September 26, 2005.

(14) Option was granted cr{ Dacember 3, 2002 and was fully vesied on December 3, 2002. This option was granted to Mr. Balzer during the time he
served solely as a director of the Company.

{15) Option was granted on February 2, 2001 and was fully vested on February 2, 2001. This option was granted to Mr, Balzer during the time he
served solely as a director of the Company.

(16) Option was granted on January 28, 2000 and was fully vested on January 28, 2000. This option was granted to Mr. Balzer during the time he
served solely as a director of the Company.

(17) Option was granted on October 3, 2000 and was fully vested on October 3, 2000. This option was granted to Mr, Balzer during the time he
served solgly as a director of the Company.

(18) Option was granted on December 22, 1999 and was fully vested on December 22, 1999. This option was granied to Mr. Batzer during the time
he served solely as a director of the Company.

{19) Option was granted on September 1, 1998, vested in four equal annual installments, and was fiuly vested on September 1, 2002, This option
was granted to Mr. Balzer during the time he served solely as a direclor of the Company.
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OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number Number
of Shares Value of Shares Value
Acquired on Realized on Acquired on Realized on

Name Exercise (#) Exercise ($) Vesting (#) Vesting ($)
William W. Staunton 0 0 90,000t $366,300
Eric A. Balzer 0 0 60,000 $244,200
Robert R. Djokovich 0 0 32,500 $132,275

(1) The Company reacquired 27,972 shares of restricted stock from Mr. Staunton to pay his withholding tax obligation upon vesting. The sale price
o the Company was the closing price of cur commoen slock on the vesting date, December 19, 2007. Mr. Staunton received a nel tola! of
62,028 shares.

{2) The Company reacquired 10,101 sharas of restricted stock from Mr. Djokovich to pay his withhokding tax obligation upon vesting. The sale price

to the Company was the dosing prce of our common stock on the vesting date, Decemter 19, 2007. Mr. Djokovich received a net total of
22,399 shares.

CHANGE-OF-.CONTROL AGREEMENTS

Effective April 25, 2007, the Company entered into a Change-in-Control Agreement (the "Agreements®) with ils execulive
officers: William W. Staunton, Chief Executive Officer; Eric A. Balzer, Chief Finantial Officer; and Robert R. Djokovich,
Chief Operating Officer (collectively, the "Executive Officers”). The Company entered into the Agreements to induce and
help assure continuity of management and operations. The Agreements are effective until April 25, 2009 and shall auto-
matically renew for successive one (1) year terms unless notice of non-renewal is given ninety (90) days prior to such
rengwal date.

/mm\

As defined in the Agreements, a "Change-in-Control* generally includes the occurrence of any of the following: (i) any per-
son becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 50% or more of the outstanding voting securities of the
Company; (ii) the approval by the Company's stockholders of a merger of the Company with or into any other corporation
of which the Company is not the surviving corporation or in which the Company survives as a subsidiary of another corpo-
ration, unless (A} a majority of the members of the Company's board of directors continue to be members of the board of
directors of the surviving corporation, or (B) no entity or person following the merger awns greater than 50% of the out-
standing securities of the surviving entity; (iii) a consofidation of the Company with any other corporation; {iv} sale or dis-
position of all or substantially all of the Company's assets or the adoption of a plan of complete liquidation; or (iv) the
members of the Board of Directors or those Board members nominated by the Company for election to the Board cease
for any reason to constitule a majority of the Board.

The Agreements also provide for the Company's additional payment to the Executive Officers of the amount of any excise

tax payable pursuant to Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code by the Executive Officer pursuant to a payment under
the Agreement in relation to a change-in-control.
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POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION FOLLOWING A CHANGE-IN-CONTROL(")

The table below reflects the hypothetical payments upon a charge-in-contrel and termination of the relative execulive offi-

U]

@

" Q)

{4}

()

(6)

_ceras of December 31, 2007. '
Gross up
of LR.C.
Golden
Cash Severance Parachute
Value of excise tax
Termination Management  Accelerated resulting from
. Clrcumstances Base Incentive Unvested Benefits Change-in
Within 12 months of Salary($) Bonus($) Equity($) Continuation{$) Controi(§) Total($)
a Change-in-Control @ K] {4) (5) {6)
Termination by the
Company Without
Cause or Executive
Resignation for Good
Reason:
* William W. Staunton 800,000 1,120,000 1,317,747 20,648 921,000 4,179,395
Eric A. Balzer 584,734 701,680 819,562 21,833 507,000 2,178,508

Robert R. Djokovich 492,200 492,200 247,645 27,668 141,000 1,400,714

All refergnces to base salary and bonus amounts refer to amounts described under *Compensation and Analysis™ and "Summary Compensation
Table."

Under the Agreements, exacutive officers, in the event of termination of the executive's employment by the Company, other than for "Cavse,” or
by the executive for "Good Reason,” the executive will receive a severance paymant equal to two imes currenl annual basa salary.

This amount is equal to the greater of either two times the borus paid to the executive for 2007, paid in the first quarter of 2008, or two limes
the target bonus for 2008 yaar to be paid in the first quarter of 2009.

The estimated value as of Dacember 31, 2007 of immediate acceleration of vesting of all outstanding equity awards (stock options and
restricted stock) granted to the executive,

Reimbursement for up to 18 months of continued eligibility to participate in medical and health benefil plans on the same use, terms and condi-
tions in eflect for the executive prior to hister lermination, plus the cash value of an additional 6 months of the same coverage.

Wo will reimburse any excise taxes imposed under Intemal Revenue Code Section 280G.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Our Code of Conduct, which applies to all employees, including all executive officers and senior officers, and directors is
posted to our website www.ramtron.com. Any materiaf changes to the Code of Conduct will also be disclosed on our web-
site. Any waivers of the Code of Conduct for our executive officers, directors or senior financial officers must be approved
by our Audit Committee and those waivers, if any would be disclosed on our website under the caption, *Exceptions to the
Code of Conduct.” There have been no waivers to the Code of Conducl.




SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our officers and directors, and persons who own more than
ten percent of a registered class of our equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and The Nasdag Stock Market. Officers, directors, our chief accounting officer, and
greater than ten percent stockholders are required by Securities and Exchange Commission regulations to furnish to the
Company copies of all Section 16(a) forms filed.

To our knowledge and based solely on our review of the copies of such forms received by us, and written representations
from certain reporting persons that no other forms were required during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, our
required Section 16 filers complied with all applicable Section 16(a) filing requirements.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The following are our relationships and related-party transactions between our companﬁ and our officers, directors and
principal stockholders or their affilistes. No new relationships and relaled-party transactions have been entered into since
January 1, 2007.

Transactions Involving the National Electrical Benefit Fund. The National Electrical Benefit Fund (the "Fund”) was
during 2007 and continues to be a principal stockholder of our company. '

Pursuant to a Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 1989 between the Company and the Fund, as
amended, the Company agreed to pay to the Fund, for as long as the Fund owns at least 5% of the oulstanding shares of
the Company's common stock, a reasonable monthly consulting fee of not more than $5,000 and to reimburse the Fund
for all out-of-pocket expenses incurred in monitoring the Fund's investment in the Company. During 2007, the Company
was obligated to pay to the Fund approximately $60,000 in payment of such fees and expenses.

PROPOSAL 2 - RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appoinled Ehrhardt Keefe Steiner & Hottman PC as our independent
audilors, to audit our consolidated financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2008. A representative of
Ehrhardt Keefe Steiner & Hottman PC is expected lo be present at the Annual Meeting, will have an opportunity to make a
slatement if he or she desires to do so and is expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

On April 10, 2007, the Audit Committee engaged Ehrhard! Keefe Steiner & Hottman PC {("EKS&H") as Ramiron's inde-
pendent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007.

The independent registered public accounting firm of KPMG, LLP, audited our financial statements for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2006, and were our independent auditors from July 2002 until March 2007.

The aggregate fees billed for professional services by EKS8H, relating 1o the audit of our 2007 consolidated financial
statements and the fees for other professional services billed in 2007 were:

Type of Fee 2007
Audit fees $234,000
All other fees - 1,300
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Audit Fees. EKS&H's fees billed to us relatlng to the 2007 annual audit services and the review of interim financial state-
ments.

Al Other Fees. EKS&H's fees billed to us dunng 2007 for Securities and Exchange Commission fitings not mcluded in

the above calegories.

Financial information Systems Design and Implementation Fees. EKS&H did not render any professional services to
us in 2007 with respect to financial information systems design and implementation.

The aggregate fees billed for professional services by KPMG, LLP, relating to the audit of our 2006 consolidated financial
statements and the fees for other professional services billed in 2006 were:

Type of Fee 2006
Audit fees $346,301
Audit related fees 12,000
Tax fees 4,500
All other fees 5815

Audit Fees. KPMG's fees billed to us relating to the 2006 annual audit services and the review of interim financiat state-
ments.

Audit-Related Fees. KPMG's fees billed to us during 2006 for audit-related services including fees for our employee ben-
efit plan audit that were not included under the heading "Audit Fees.”- .

Tax Fees. KPMG's fees billed to us during 2006 for tax consultation and tax retum preparation services.

All Other Fees. KPMG's fees billed to us during 2006 for Securities and Exchange Commission filings not included in the
above categories.

Financlal Information Systems Design and Implementation Fees. KPMG did not render any professional services to
us in 2006 with respect to financial information systems design and implementation.

The Audit Committee has eslablished a policy whereby the Audit Committee must pre-approve all audit and pemmitled non-
audil services performed by the Company's independent auditors in accordance with a prior description of the services to
be performed and specific estimates for each such services. The Audit Committee pre-approved all of the services per-
formed by EKS&H during fiscal 2007.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing management's financial reporting practices
and intemal controls and audit function. During 2007, the Audit Committee was composed of three outside, independent
directors, all of whom meet the independence requirements of applicable Securities and Exchange Commission rules and
regulations and listing requirements of The Nasdaq Stock Market. During 2007, Mr. Theodore J. Cobum was the Audit .
Committee financial expert as defined under applicable Securities and Exchange Commission rules and was also desmed
to be a financially sophisticated Audit Committee member under applicable NASDAQ rules. The Audit Committee oper-
ates under a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors and a copy is filed as Appendix A to this Proxy. The charter
is annually reassessed and updated, as needed, in accordance with applicable rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and The Nasdaq Stock Market. The Audit Committee Charter is also available on our website at
www.ramtron.com,
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In connection with our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, the Audit
Committee has:

o Reviewed and discussed our audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007
with our independent registered public accounting firm and our management, including a discussion of the quality, not
just the acceptability, of the accounting principles, (he reasonableness of significant estimates and judgments, critical
accounting policies and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements.

e Discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm matters required of auditors to be discussed by
Statement on Auditing Standards No. 114 (Communicalion with Audit Committees).

e Ourindependent registered public accounting firm also provided to the Audit Committee the written disclosures required
by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees), and the Audil
Committee discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm their independence.

Based on these actions, the Audit Commitiee recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited consolidated finan-
cial statements be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 for filing with
the Securilies and Exchange Commission.

Theodore J. Coburn, Chair
William G. Howard
Jack L. Saftich

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS
VOTE "FOR" THE RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS NAMED ABOVE

OTHER MATTERS

We currently know of no matters fo be submitted at the Annual Meeting other than those described herein. If any other
matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, it is the inlention of the persons named on the enclosed proxy card lo
vote the shares they represent as the Board of Directors may recommend.

FORM 10-K

COPIES OF QUR ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AS FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WILL BE PROVIDED TO STOCKHOLDERS WITHOUT CHARGE
UPON WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE CORPORATE SECRETARY, RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION, 1850
RAMTRON DRIVE, COLORADO SPRINGS, COLORADO 80921.

By Order of the Board of Directors

=

Eric A. Balzer
Secretary
Colorado Springs, Colorado
April 22, 2008
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APPENDIX A

RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

Purpose

The purpose of the Audit Committee (the "Committee”) of the Board of Directors of Ramtron Intemational Corporation, a
Delaware corporation {the "Company”), is to represent and assist the Board of Directors in its general oversight of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting processes, audits of the financial statements, internal control and audit func-
tions, and compliance with legal and requlatory requirements and ethicat standards adopted by the Company.

Composition of the Committee

The Committee will be comprised of three or more members. Each Committee member shall meet the director and audit
committee member independence and financial literacy criteria of The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. ("Nasdaq"). Al least one
member of the Committee must be financially sophisticated as determined by the Board of Directors, and no Committee
member shall have participated in the preparation of the financial statements of the Company or any current subsidiary of
the Company at any lime during the three years prior to the appointment of such member to the Commitiee. Appointment
to the Committee, including the designation of the Chair of the Committee and the designation of any Committee members
as "audit committes financial experts,” shall be made by the full Board of Directors. Committee members shall serve at the
pteasure of the Board of Directors and for such term or terms as the Board of Directors may determine.

Each Commitiee member shall be able to read and understand fundamenta! financial statements, including a balance sheet,
an income statement and a cash flow statement. The designation or identification of a person as having financial sophisti-
cation or as a financial expert shall not (a) impose on such person any duties, obligations or liability that are greater than the
duties, obligations and liability imposed on such person as a member of the Committee and Board of Directors in the absence
of such designation or identification; or (b} affect the duties, obligations or liability of any other member of the Committee or
Board of Directors.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Committee

The Committee is responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Company and the
audits of the financial statements of the Company on behalf of the Board of-Directors. Management is responsible for (a)
the preparation, presentation and integrity of the Company’s financial statements; (b) accounting and financial reporting prin-
ciples; and {c) the Company’s internal controls and procedures designed to promole compliance with accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations. The Company's independent auditing firm is responsible for performing an independent
audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.

In performing its responsibilities, the Committee shall have the full power and authority to carry out the following responsi-
bilittes in accordance with Nasdag listing requirements and rules and regulations promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC"):

1) Retain the Independent Auditors: The Committee has the sole authority to (a) retain and terminate the Company's inde-
pendent auditors, (b) approve all audil engagement fees, terms and services and (c} approve any non-audil engage-
ments with the Company's independent auditors. The Committee may delegate the authority to grant any pre-approvals
of non-audit engagements to one or more members of the Committee as it designates, subject to the delegated mem-
ber or members reporting any such pre-approvals to the Committee at its next scheduled meeling.




2)

3)

4)

9)

6)

7

8)

9)

Review and Discuss the Independence of the Auditors: In connection with the retention of the Company’s independent
auditors, the Commitiee is to, at leasl annually, review and discuss the information provided by management and the
audilors relating to the independence of the audit firm, including, among other things, information related to the non-
audit services provided and expected to be provided by the auditors. The Committee is responsible for {a) ensuring that
the independent auditors submit at least annually to the Committee a formal written statement defineating all relation-
ships between the auditors and the Company consistent with applicable independence standards, including
independence Standards Board Standard 1, {b) actively engaging in a dialogue with the auditors with respect to any
disclosed refationship or services that may impact the objectivity and independence of the auditors and (c) taking, or
recommending that the Board of Directors take, appropriate action to oversee the independence of the auditor. in con-
nection with the Committee's evaluation of the auditors’ independence, the Committee shall also take such steps as may
be required by law with respect o the identification and regular rotation of the audit pariners serving on the Company's
audit engagement team.

Set Hiring Policies: The Committee is to sel hiring policies for employees or former employees of the independent audi-
lors. '

Review and Discuss the Audit Plan and Results: The Committee shall review and discuss with the independent audi-
tor: (a) its audit plans, and audit procedures, including the scope, fees and timing of the audit, (b) the results of the
annua! audit examination and accompanying management letters; and (c) the results of the independent auditor's pro-
cedures with respect to interim periods.

Review and Discuss Conduct of the Audit: The Committee shall provide sufficient opportunity for the intemal and inde-
pendent auditors to meet with the members of the audit committee without members of management present, evaluate
the cooperation received by the independent auditors during their audit examination, including their access to all
requested records, data and information, and elicit the comments of management regarding the responsiveness of the
independent auditors to the Company's needs. '

Review and Discuss Financial Statements and Disclosures: The Committee is to review and discuss with appropriate
officers of the Company and the independent auditors the annual audited and quarterly financial statements of the
Company, as well as (a) the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s intemnal controls (including any significant
deficiencies and significant changes in internal controls reported o the Committee by the independent auditor or man-
agement); (b) the Company's intemal audit procedures; and (c) the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's dis-
closures controls and procedures, and management reports thereon.

Review and Discuss Eamings Press Releases: The Committee is to review and discuss earnings and other financial
press releases (including any use of "pro forma” or "adjusted” non-GAAP information), as well as financial information
and earnings guidance provided to analysts and rating agencies (which review may occur after issuance and may be
done generally as a review of the types of informalion to be disclosed and the form of presentation to be made).

Review and Discuss [nternal Audit Plans: The Committee is to review and discuss with the senior internal auditing exec-
utive and appropriate members of the staff of the inlemal auditing department the plans for and the scope of their ongo-
ing audit activities, including adequacy of staffing and compensation.

Review and Discuss Intemal Audit Reports: The Committee is to review and discuss with the senior internal auditing
executive and appropriate members of the staff of the intemal auditing department the annual report of the audit activ-
ities, examinations and resuts thereof of the inlemat auditing department.
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10) Review and Discuss the Recommendations of Independent Auditors: The Committee may review and discuss with the
senior internal auditing executive and the appropriate members of the staff of the intemal auditing department recom-
mendations made by the independent auditors and the senior internal audiling executive, as well as such other matters,
if any, as such persons or other officers of the Company may desire to bring to the attention of the Committee.

11) Review and Discuss External Audit Reports: The Committee is to review and discuss reports from the independent audi-
tors on (a) all critical accounting policies and practices used by the Company; (b) altemalive accounting trealments
within GAAP related to material items that have been discussed with management, including the ramifications of the use
of the altemative treatments and the treatment preferred by the independent auditor; and (c) other materiat written com-
munications between the independent auditor and management.

12) Assurance Regarding Conduct. Obtain assurance from the independent auditors that in the course of conductling the
audil, there have been no acts detected or that have otherwise come to the attention of the audit firm that require dis-
closure to the Committee under SEC rules and regulations.

13) Discuss Risk Managemerit Policies: The Committee is to discuss guidelines and policies with respect to risk assess-
ment and risk managerent to assess and manage the Company's exposure lo risk. The Committee should discuss the
Company's major financial risk exposures and the steps management has taken to monitor and contro! these exposures.

14) Obtain Reports Regarding Conformity With Legal Requirements and the Company's Code of Conduct: The Commitiee
shall investigate, review and report to the Board the propriety and ethical implications of any transactions, as reported
or disclosed to the Committee by the independent auditors, employees, officers, members of the Board or otherwiss,
between the Company and any employee, officer or member of the Board of the Company or any affiliates of the fore-
going. The Committee is to periodically obtain reports from management, the Company's senior intemal audiling exec-
utive and the independent auditor thal the Company and its subsidiaryfforeign affiliated enlities are in conformity with
applicable legal requirements and the Company's Code of Conduct. The Commitiee should advise the Board of
Directors with respect to the Company's policies and procedures regarding compliance with applicable laws and regu-
lations and with the Company’s Code of Conduct.

15) Approve Related Party Transaclions: The Committee is to approve all related party transactions that are required to be
disclosed pursuant to item 404 of Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC.

16) Establish Procedures for Complaints Regarding Financial Statements or Accounting Poficies: The Committee is to
establish procedures for (a) the receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding
accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters and (b) the confidential, anonymous submission by employ-
ees of the Company of concems regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

17) Discuss With Compliance Officer or Counsel Matters Regarding Financial Slatements or Compliance Policies: The
Committee should discuss with the Company's compliance officer and legal counset legal matters that may have a mate-
rial impact on the financial statements or the Company's compliance policies.

18) Review and Discuss Other Matters: The Committee should review and discuss such other matters that relate to the
accounting, auditing and financial reporting practices and procedures of the Company as the Committee may, in its own
discretion, deem desirable in connection with the review functions described above.

19) Make Board Reporls: The Committee should report its activities regularly to the Board of Directors in such manner and
at such times as the Committee and the Board of Directors deem appropriate, but in no event less than once a year.
Such report shall include a review of any issues that arise with respect to the quality or integrity of the Company's finan-
cial statements, the Company's compliance with legal or regulatory requirements, the performance and independence
of the Company's independent auditors or the performance of the intemal audit function. .
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20) Maintain Flexibility. The Commitiee, in camrying out its responsibilities, policies and procedures should remain flexible,
in order to best react to changing conditions and circumstances. The Commitiee should take appropriale actions to set
the overall corporate "tone" for quality financial reporting, sound business risk practices and ethical behavior.

Meetings of the Committee

The Committee shall meet in person or telephonically at least quarierly, or mora frequently as it may determine necessary,
to comply with its responsibilities as set forth herein. The Chairman of the Committee shall, in consultation with the other
members of the Committee, the Company's independent auditors and the appropriate officers of the Company, be respon-
sible for calling meetings of the Committee, establishing agenda therefor and supervising the conduct thereof, The
Committes may also take any action permitied hereunder by unanimous written consent.

The Committee may request any officer or employee of the Company or the Cempany's outside legal counse! or independ-
ent auditors to attend a meeting of the Committee or lo meet with any members of, or consultants to, the Committee. The
Committee shall meet with the Company's management, the intemal audilors and the independent auditors periodically in
separate private sessions 10 discuss any matter that the Committee, management, the independent auditors or such other
persons believes should be discussed privately.

Resources and Authority of the Committee

The Committee shall have the resources and authority appropriale to discharge its responsibilities as required by faw, includ-
ing the authority to engage independent counsel and other advisors as the Committee deems necessary to carry oul ils
duties. The Company will provide for appropriate funding, as determined by the Committee, for payment of expenses of the
Committee and any independent advisors the Committee may retain.

Audit Committee Report

The Committee will prepare, with the assistance of management and oulside legal counsel, the Audit Commitiee Report lo
be included in the Company's annual proxy statement.

Annua! Review of Charter

The Commitiee will conduct and review with the Board of Directors annually an evaluation of the adequacy of this Charter
and recommend any changes to the Board of Directors. The Committee may conduct this charter evaluation in such man-
ner as the Committee, in its business judgment, deems appropriate.

Annual Performance Evaluation
The Committee will conduct and review with the Board of Directors annually an evaluation of the Committee's performance
with respect to the requirements of this Charter. This evaluation should also set forth the goals and objectives of the

Committee for the upcoming year. The Committee may conduct this performance evaluation in such manner as the
Committee, in its business judgment, deems appropriale.

KT

m}

WEVENES

Ié




e T e R, ] T BCE PR A TEN et P . LR

v RS 7 i e )
: . PLIEN o - A T - ——— e -

R, * ! i RN L S = .

. R - I ;_”.-_1_._'_'-. RN . o Sl T - 5 . -

Financials

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified in their entirety by, the
consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto and “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations™ included herain.

RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Cash dividends per common share(!)

{1} We have not declared any cash dividends on our common stock and do not expact lo pay such dividends in the foreseeable future,
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(in thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
. Revenue $51,094 $40,481 $34,392 $39,434 $28,733
Gross margin, product sales 25983 20,657 15,789 20,032 13,482
Income {loss) from continuing operations 9,891 457 {2,642) 3457 {(712)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations - - {3,649) 145 (8,793)
Net income (loss) applicable to common shares 9,891 457 {6,491) 3,602 (9,505)
Eamings (loss}) per share from continuing operations:
- basic $ 039 $ 002 ${0.1%) $ 015 ${0.03)
- diluted $ 037 $ 0.02 $(0.14) $0.14 $(0.03)
Earnings (loss} per share - basic $ 039 $ 0.02 $(0.28) $ 016 $(043)
Eamings (loss) per share - diluted $ 037 § 0.02 $(0.28) $ 015 ${043)
Working capilal 15,162 11,242 10,133 16,319 12,168
Total assels 46,526 32457 32,816 33,653 26,645
Total long-term debt 4,894 5,859 7137 4914 2,659
Stockholders' equity 31,205 17,072 14,494 15,192 11,042




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYS!IS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITICN AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

The following discussion and analysis is intended to provide
greater details of our results of operations and financial condition.
The following discussion should be read in conjunclion with the
Company's consolidated financial statements and noles thereto
and other financial data included elsewhere herein. Certain state-

ments under this caption. constitute forward-locking ‘statemeits™

within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, and, as such, are based on current expeclations and are
subject to certain risks and uncertainties. You should not place
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements for many rea-
sons including those risks discussed under Part |. ltem 1A, Risk
Factors and eisewhere in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27,
2008. Forward-looking statements may be identified by the use of
forward-looking words or phrases such as “will," "may,” ‘believe,”
*expect,” ‘intend,” “anticipate,” “could,” “should,” “anticipate,”
*plan, “estimate,” and “polential,” or other similar words.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The praparation of our consolidated financial statements and
related disclosures in conformity with generally accepted account-
ing principles in the United States requires us to make eslimates
and judgments that affect the amounts reported in our financial
slatements and accompanying notes. By their nalure, these esti-
mates and judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncer-
tainty. On an ongoing basis we re-evaluate our judgments and est-
mates including those related to bad debts, inventories, iong-lived
assets, intangible assets, income taxes, accrued expenses and
other contingencies. We base our estimates and judgments on our
historical experience, market rends, financial forecasts and pro-
jections and on other assumptions that we believe are reasonable
under the circumstances, and apply them on a consistent basis.
Any factual errors or emors in these estimates and judgments may
have a material impact on our financial condition, operaling resulls
and cash flows.

Recognition of Revenue. Revenue from product sales to direct
customers and distribulors is recognized upon shipment as we
generally do not have any post-shipment obligations or allow for
any acceplance provisions. In the event a situation oceurs fo cre-
ate a post-shipment obligation, we would defer revenue recogni-
tion until the specific obligation was satisfied. We defer recognition
of sales to distributors when we are unable to make a reasonable
eslimate of product returns due 1o insufficient historical product
return informalion. The revenue recorded is dependent upon esti-
mates of expected customer retums and sales discounts based
upon both historical data and management estimates,

Revenue from licensing programs is recognized over the period we
are required to provide services under the terms of the agreement,
Revenue from research and development activities that are funded

by customers is recognized as the services are performed.

Revenue from royalties is recognized upon the notification to us.of.

shipment of product from our technology license partners to direct
customers.

Inventory Valuation. We write-down ‘our inventory for estimated
obsolescence or lack of marketability for the difference between
the cost of inventory and the estimated market.value based upon
assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual
market conditions are ess favorable than those projected by man-
agemenl, additional inventory write-downs may be required.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We seek to maintain a strin-
gent credit approval process although our management must
make significant judgments in assessing our customers’ ability to
pay at the time of shipment. Despite this assessment, from time to
fime, customers are unable to meet their payment obligations. if
we are aware of a customer's inability to meet its financial obfiga-
tions to us, wa record an allowance to reduce the receivable to the
amount we reasonably believe we will be able to coliect from the
customer. For all olher customers, we record an allowance based
upon the amoun! of time the receivables are past due. if actual
accounts receivable collections differ from these eslimates, an
adjustment 1o the allowance may be necessary with a resulting
effect on operating expense. We continue to monitor customers’
credit worthiness, and use judgment in establishing the estimated
amounts of customer receivables which will ultimately not be col-
lected.

In addition, our distributors have a right to retum products under
certain conditions. We recognize revenue on shipments to disirib-
ulors at the time of shipment, along with & reserve for estimaled
returns based on historical data and future estimates.

_Deferred Income Taxes. As part of the process of preparing our

consolidated financial stalements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, we
are required to estimate our income taxes on a consolidated basis.
We record deferred tax assets and liabilities for the estimated
future tax effects of temporary differences between the tax basis of
assets and liabilties and amounts recorded in the consolidated
financial statements, and for operating loss and tax credit carry for-
wards, Realization of the recorded deferred tax assets is depend-
ent upon our generating sufficient taxable income in future years to
obtain benefit from the reversal of net deductible temporary differ-
ences and from tax credit and operating loss carry forwards. A val-
vation allowance is provided to the extent thal management
deems it more llkely than not that the net deferred tax assets wil
not be realized. The amount of deferred tax assets considered
realizable is subject to adjusiment up or down in future periods if
estimates of fulure taxable income are changed. Future adjust-
ments could matenially affect our financial results as reported in
conformity with accounlting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and, among other effects, could cause us
not to achieve gur projected resulls.
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We have determined, based on all- available evidence, that-it is

more likely than not that defemred tax assets of approximately $7.6.

million will be realized and our fiscal 2007 income statement
reflects a non-cash benefit in that amount. We have estimated an
average growth rate of 12% in Yaxable income during the ne! oper-
ating foss camyfoward period in determining the realization of the

" recorded defermed tax assel.

In assessing the potential 1o realize our deferred {ax assels, we
consider whether il is more likely than not that some portion or all
of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate real-
ization of deferred tax assels is dependent upon the generation of
future taxable income during the perods in which thase temporary
differences become deductible. We consider the scheduled rever-
sal of deferred tax liabilities, projected fulure laxable income, and
tax planning strategies in making this assessment, Based upon the
leve! of historical taxable income and projeciions for future taxable
income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are
deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that the
Company will realize the benefits of these deductible differences.
The amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable, how-
ever, could be reduced if estimates of future taxable income during
the camyforward period are reduced.

Long-Lived Assets. We review the camying values of long-lived
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
such camying values may not be recoverable. Under current slan-
dards, the assets must be carried at historical cost if the projected
cash flows from their use will recover their camying amounts on an
undiscounted basis and without considering interest. However, if
projected cash flows are less than their camrying value, the long-
lived assets must be reduced to their estimated fair value.
Considerable judgment is required to project such cash flows and,
if required, estimate the fair value of the impaired long-ived asset.
The estimated future cash flows are based upon, among other
things, assumptions about expected future operating performance
and may differ from actual cash flows. There can be no assurance
that future long-lived asset impairments will not occur.

Goodwill, Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price
over the fair value of identifiable net tangible and intangible assels
acquired in a business combination. Goedwill is required to be
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if evenls or
changes in circumstances indicate that goodwill may be impaired.
We performed our annual goodwill impaiment lesting as of
December 31, 2007, and determined that no impairment existed at
that date. This assessment requires estimates of future revenue,
operating results and cash flows, as well as estimates of critical
valuation inputs such as discount rates, terminal values and simi-
lar data. We continue to perform periodic and annual impairment
analyses of goodwill resulling from acquisitions, As a result of such
impairment analyses, impairmen! charges may be recorded and
may have a material adverse impact on our financial position and
operating results. Additionally, we may make strategic business
decistons in future periods which impact the fair valug of goodwill,
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‘which could result in significant impairment charges. There canbe

no assurance thal future goodwill impairments will niot cccur.

Share-Based Payment Assumptions. We estimate voiatifity and
torfeitures based on historical data and the expected lerm of
options granted. All of these vanables have an affect on the
amount charged to expense in our consolidated stalement of
income.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

We are a fabless semiconduclor company that designs, develops
and markets specialized semiconductor memory, microcontroller,
and integrated semiconductor solutions, used in many markets for
a wide range of applications. We pioneered the integration of fer-
roelectric malerials into semiconductor products, which enabled
the development of a new class of nonvolalile memory products,
called ferroelectric random access memory (F-RAM). F-RAM prod-
ucts merge the advantages of mulliple memory technologies inlo a
single device that is able to refain information without a power
source, can be read from and written to at very fast speeds and
writlen to many limes, and consumes low amounis of power and
can simplify the design of electronic systems. In many cases, we
are the sole provider of F-RAM enabled semiconductor products,
which facilitates close customer refationships, long application life-
cycles and the potential for high-margin sales.

We also integrate analog and mixed-signal functions such as
microprocessor supervision, lamper detection, imekeeping, and
power failure delection onte a single device with our F-RAM. This
has enabled a new class of products thal addresses the growing
market reed for more efficient and cost effective semiconductor
products.

In 2007, we introduced 17 new products, which included stand-
alone memory, AEC-Q100 automotive grade products, integrated
products and a custom integrated circult device.

QOur total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007 was
$51.1 million. In 2007, 97% of our revenue was derived from sales
of our products and 3% of our revenue was derived from customer-
sponsored research and development programs for F-RAM tech-
nology with major semiconductor manufaclurers, licensing of our
F-RAM inteflectual property to 8 number of semiconductor manu-
facturers, and royalties resulting from the sale of F-RAM products
by centain licensees,

2007 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o Forthe fiscal year 2007, revenue increased 26% to $51.1 million
from $40.5 million in fiscal year 2005.




o Wa racorded a deferred lax asset on our balance sheet that rep-
resents the estimated amount of tax loss carry forward the com-
pany curently expects to offset with future taxable income. This
resulted in a non-cash deferred income tax benefit of $7.6 mil-
fion, which was recorded on our income statement for the year
ended December 31, 2007.

« Total product revenue for fiscal year 2007 was up 26% to $49.4
million, compared with $39.1 million for fiscal year 2006,

» Integrated product revenue grew 92%, to $7.4 miltion, from fis-
cal year 2006 to fiscal year 2007.

» Product gross margin for fiscal year 2007 was 53%, consistent
with the same period in fiscal year 2006.

» By region, sales for fiscal year 2007 were as follows: Asia Pacific
(39% of sales), Americas (22% of sales), Japan (20% of sales),
and Europe (19% of sales). These sales are based on product
shipment destination. '

2008 BUSINESS OUTLOOK
For fiscal 2008, management curently projects:

« Total revenue growth of 24% to 28% over full year 2007 revenue
of $51.1 million.

« Gross margin of 53% to 55%

« Non-product revenue of approximately $1.1 miltion.

« Tota! operating expenses to be approximately 45% (o 48% of
total revenue. By expense line item, management is targeling
sales and marketing to be 13% to 14% of lotal revenue,
research and development to be 20% to 22% of total revenue,
and general and administrative to be 12% of total revenue.

¢ Pre lax net income of 8% to 10% of lotal revenue.

» Stock-based compensation expense of approximately $1.6 mil-
lion.

» Tax expense of approximately 40% of profit before tax of which
2% will relate to the Altemative Minimum Tax (AMT) that will
affect cash flow, the remaining expense will not affect cash.

Qur 2008 plan anticipates growth in all of our end markets, partic-
ularly in the computing area as our custom devices for printer car-
tridges gain momentum.

We anticipate 2008 sales in our target market to be as follows:
metering (27% of sales), computing and information systems (34%
of sales), automotive {14% of sales), and industrial, scientific and
medical and other (25% of sales). On the strength of our plans for
lopHine growth, we expect lo continue to benefit from the operat-
ing leverage built into our business model to grow net income,

We expect that the 17 new products we intreduced during 2007, as
well as the 14 new products planned for 2008, to provide a foun-
dation for future revenue growth.

Since its introduction during the first quarter of 2007, we have been
cultivaling customer design-in opportunities for our high-density
4Mb F-RAM product. We now have design-in activily across all of
our end-markets which we would expect to continue going forward.

Industrial, scientific and medical (1SM) applications continues to be
a worldwide business for us. Our strategy to increase sales to the
ISM market is to facilitate design-ins through top distributors within
our established distribution sales network.

Our business in the metering market continues to strengthen as F-
RAM enabled advanced utility meters are deployed in association
with advanced metering programs worldwide. In 2008, we will
work to deepen our relationships with a broad metering customer
base as we align our future product development with their needs.

We are encouraged by the continued adoption of F-RAM in auto-
molive applications. F-RAM adoption is expected to accelerale as
more high-end subsystems move toward the mainstream, For
example, antl pinch/irap applications are destined to grow beyond
high content vehicles to more vehicles over time. As with anti
pinch/trap systems, we have a foothold in a variety of applications
that have the petential to proliferate across various car manufac-
turers and models. In 2008, we expect to conlinue to penetrate
automotive applications with the new Grade-1 and Grade-3 auto-
motive products we introduced in 2007.

In future quarters, we expec! to record tax expense approximating
38.5% of net income and reduce the deferred tax asset for the
amount of the provision.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AS COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 2006
and
DECEMBER 31, 2006 AS COMPARED TO DECEMBER 31, 2005

Revenus
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005
(in thousands, except average selling price)

Product sales ' $49,422 539,095 $39,095 $32,664
% change compared to prior period +26% +20%
Units shipped 54,068 44743 44,743 37,160
% change compared to prior period +21% +20%
Average selling price $0.91 $0.67 $0.87 $0.88
% change compared to prior period +5% 1%
Other revenue $ 1,672 $ 1,386 3 1,386 $ 1,728
% change compared lo prior period +20% -20%
Total revenue $51,094 $40,481 $40,481 $34,392
% change compared {o prior period +26% +18%
2007 to 2006:

The Company had a very strong year both in terms of units shipped and product revenue. Our total revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2007 was $10.6 million greater than the prior year primarily due to product revenue, which increased §10.3 million from
the prior year. Product revenue increased due to a 21% increase in unit shipments compared to the prior year combined with a 5%
increase in the average selling price (ASP).

Non-product revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $286,000 greater than the prior year due primarily to customer-spon-
sored research and development (R&D) of $330,000 during 2007 compared to no R&D revenue in 2006.

2006 to 2005:

Qur total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $40.5 million, compared with $34.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005, primarily due o increased unit volume as our average price remained refatively flal year over year.

Non-product revenue during 2006, which included royally payments and ficense revenue, decreased by $342,000, compared with 2005.

This was due to a decrease in customer-sponsored research and development revenue of $250,000 from 2005 to 2006 due to no
research and development fee payments from Texas Instruments during 2006.
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Cost of Product Sales

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Cost of product sales $23,439 $18438  $18438 $16,875
Gross margin percentage 53% 53% 53% 48%

2007 to 2006:

Cost of producl sales increased $5 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the prior year due to our increased sales
of $10.3 miltion. Qur gross margin percentage remained the same for both years at 53%.

2006 to 2005:

Cost of product sales, including the provision for inventory write-off in 2005 of $876,000, increased $1.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The Company's gross margin percentage increased 5% in 2006 compared to 2005 primarily due to no correspon-
ding inventory write-off in the year ended December 31, 2006.

Research and Development Expense

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005
(in thousands})
Combined research and development expense $10,837 $9,885 $9,885 $7.615
Percent of total revenue 21% 24% 24% 22%

2007 to 2006:

Combined research and development expenses for the year ended Decernber 31, 2007 increased $1 million compared to the prior year
primarily due to increased salaries relating to headcount increases, increased expenses relating to masks and wafers associated with
our Texas Instruments project and increased stock-based compensation expense.

2006 to 2005:

Combined research and development expenses were $9.9 million, an increase of $2.3 million from 2005 to 2006. The increase prima-
rily resulted from increased spending related to activities at our Canadian subsidiary, stock-based compensation expense and severance
payments made in 2006,

General and Administrative Expense

December 31, December 31, ;

2007 2006 2006 2005 |

(in thousands) '
General and administrative expense $7,053 $5,149 $5,148 $4,415
Percent of total revenue 14% 13% 13% 13%

2007 to 2006:

General and administrative expenses increased $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the prior year prima-
rily due to stock-based compensation expense and management bonus expensa.
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2006 to 2005:

General ang administrative expenses were $5.1 million, an increase of $700,000 from 2005 to 2006. The primary reason for the increase
was stock-based compensation expense recognized in 2006.

Sales and Marketing Expense
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005
{in thousands)
Sales and marketing expense $7,005 56,034 §6,034 $5,029
Percent of total revenue 14% 15% 15% 15%
2007 to 2006:

Sales and marketing expenses increased $1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the prior year primarily due to
increased sales and sales representalive commissions, travel and stock-based compensation expense.

2006 to 2005:

Sales and marketing expenses were $6 mifiion, an increase of $1 miltion from 2005 to 2006. The increase was a result of grealer sales
commissions, increased sales efforts, spending on fradeshows, and stock-based compensation expense recognized in 2006.

In-Process R&D and Debt Discount and Loss on Extinguishment Expenses

-

December 31, December 31,
2007 - 2006 2006 2005
{in thousands)
Write-off of in-process R&D - - - $1,067
Write-down of debt discount and loss on extinguishment - - - 1,624

2006 to 2005:

The $1.1 million write-down of in-process research and development for the year ended December 31, 2005 related to the acguisition of
Goal Semiconduclor in the third quarter of 2005.

The $1.6 million write-down of debt discount and loss on extinguishment of debt related to the retirement of the Company's fixed rate
convertible debantures during the year ended December 31, 2005,

Other Non-Operating Income (Expenses)

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Interest expense, related party - - - $(162)
Interest expense, other $ (495) $(612) $(612) (592)
Other income 148 154 154 M5
Income tax {provision) benefit 7418 {60) {60) -




2007 to 2006:

Other interest expense decreased $100,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the prior year due lo lower average
principle outstanding for our promissory notes combined with lower interest rales associated with our lerm loan.

For the year ending December 34, 2006, we recorded an income tax provision of $60,000 relating to the alternative minimum tax. During
the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded a deferred income tax benefit of $7.6 million relating to a release of a valuation allowance that
we determined is no longer required on specific deferred taxes. The amount of the reversal represents the estimated value of net oper-
aling losses that we determined were more likely than not to be realized in the form of reduced taxable income in the future. In future
quarters, we expact to record tax expense approximating 38.5% of net income and reduce the deferred tax asset for the amount of the
provision.

2006 to 2005:

Interest expense, refated party, decreased $200,000 from 2005 to $0 in 2006 due to the retirement of the related convertible debenture
in July 2005.

Other interest expense remained at $600,000 in 2006. This was due to non-related party principal outstanding throughout 2006, offset
by less prepaid loan and debt discount amortization during 2006.

Other income decreased $200,000 from 2005 to 2006 to $200,000. This was due primarily to decreased foreign exchange gains incumed
in 2006, offset by increased interest income during 2006.

Income Tax Provision. During 2006, the Company recognized $60,000 in tax expense related to the alterative minimum tax. No such
provision was incurred during 2005 due to a net ioss for the year.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Flow Summary

Our cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities,
as reflected in the consolidated statements of cash flows for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, are summarized as fol-
lows:

K.

{in thousands) 2007 2006
Cash provided by (used for):

Operating activities $4835 §2865
Investing activities (1,7110)  1,651)
Financing activities (604) (246)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 2 (8)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $2523 § 960

Cash provided by operating activities increased by $2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2007 compared with the year ended
December 31, 2006. This increase was due primarily to increased
eamings of $9.4 million and non-cash stock-based compensation
expense of $1.3 million offsel by a net increase of working capital
of $1.3 million and a non-cash benefit for deferred taxes of $7.6
million. The working capilal increase was due primanly to
increases ininventory and accounts receivable, which is consistent
with our higher sales volume,

Cash used forinvesting activilies increased by $59,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2007 compared to the prior year due to
increased expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment.

Cash used for financing activities increased $358,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2007 compared to the prior year due prima-
rily to the reacquisition of shares of reslricted stock upon vesting
for $241,000 during 2007 as payment for withholding taxes, and

we recorded these shares as treasury stock.

Liquidity

We had $6.8 million in cash and cash equivalents at December 31,
2007, which includes $6.3 million in our money market account.
QOur future liquidity depends on continued revenue growth, steady

gross margins‘and control of operalrng expenses. In addition to

operating cash fiow from product sales, we have up lo $4 million
under our revolvnng secured credit facility avatlable o us 1hrough
March 27, 2009. As of December 31, 2007, no balance was out-
standing on our revoiving’ credit facility. We believe we have suffi-
cient resources o fund our operations through 2008.

1t our net cash Row is not suffictent to meet our cash requirements,

we may use the credil faamy mentioned abave or any cther credit
fauhty we may obtain. We may, however, be required to seek addi-

tiona! equity or ‘debt financing. Any issuance of common Or pre-

ferred stock to obtain additional funding would resull in dilution of
Lhe interest of existing stockhalders.
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Debt Instruments. In September 20035, we entered into a loan
agreement with Silicon Valley Bank for a $3 million secured term
loan facility. Interest on the term loan is set al a floaling rate equal
to the prime lending rale plus 1% per year and the term Ioan has a
term of 36 months. As of December 31, 2007, approximately
$700,000 remained oulstanding. The loan agreement also pro-
vides for a $4 million revolving secured credil facility. The revolv-
fng secured credil facility was renewed on March 28, 2007.
Interest on the revolving facility is set at a floating rate equal to the
prime landing rate plus 0.50% per year, with a minimum interest
rate of 6.00% per year. The revolving facility has a term of two
years, As of December 31, 2007, no balance was outstanding on
the revolving facility. Security for the loan agreement includes all
of our assets except for real estate. In addition, we entered inlo an
intellectual property security agreement with Silicon Valley Bank
that secures our obligations under the loan agreemenl by granting
Silicon Valley Bank a security interest in our intellectual property.
We are required to comply with certain covenants under the loan
agreement, as amended, including requirements to maintain a
minimum nel worth and maintain certain leverage ratios, and
restrictions on cerfain business actions withoul the consent of
Silicon Valley Bank.

On December 29, 2006, the Company entered into a Third
Amendment to Amended and Reslated Loan and Security
Agreement, as amended, with Silicon Valley Bank, The amend-
ment revised the financial covenants for debt service to beller
reflect the Company's operations and removes capital expenditure
limits and investment limits relating to our Canadian subsidiary. On
March 28, 2007, the Company entered into a Fourth Amendment
to the Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement with
Silicon Valley Bank. The loan medification granted more favorable
restrictions relating to the Company's foreign account receivable
bomowing base, removed prepayment penalties associated with
our committed revolving line and extended our revolving credit line
to March 27, 2008. We were in compliance with al} of our debt
covenanis as of December 31, 2007.

On December 15, 2005, the Company, through ils subsidiary,
Ramtron LLC, for which we serve as sole member and sole man-
ager, dosed a morigage loan facility with American_National
insurance Company. Ramiron LLC entered into a promissory note
evidencing the loan with the principal amount of $4,200,000, with
a maturily date of January 1, 2016, bearing interest at 6.17%. As
of December. 31, 2007, approximately $4 milion remained out-
standing. Ramtron LLC also entered inlo an agreement for the
benefit of American National Insuranoe Company granting it a
mortgage over our real estate as coflateral for the morigage loan

. facility.

Wa are investigating the benefit of selling the Company’s head-
quarters and leasing office space better suited for our needs, or
leasing the portion of our headquarters that we do nol currently
use,




Contractual Obligations and Commerclal Commitments. At December 31, 2007, our commitments under our contractual obligations

and commercial commitmenis were as follows:

After
(in thousands) 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2012 Total
Long-term debtt) $1,341 $ 622 $616 $ 616 $616 $4.119 $ 7,930
Operating leases 1,208 504 1 - - - 1,727
Purchase obligations? 9,518 - - - - - 9,519
Total $12,069 $1,126 $629 $ 616 $616 $4,119 $19,176

{1) Includes required principal and interest payments for our outstanding term loan with Silicon Valley Bank; our mortgage loan with American Nationa!
insurance Company; the payments fo National Semiconductor Corporation and minimurn interest charges related o our revalving line of credit

with Silicon Valley Bank.

{2) Ourpurchase cbligations are amounts committed under legally enfosceable contracts or purchase orders for goods and services with defined terms

as to price, quantity, delivery and termination liability.

LEGAL MATTERS

We are party to legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of
our business. Although the oulcomes of any such legal actions
cannot be predicted, our management believes that there are no
pending tegal proceedings against or involving us for which the
outcome would hikely have a material adverse effect upon our
financial posilion or results of operations.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The infermation required by this item is provided in Note 1 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT
MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk, We do nol use derivative financial instruments
in our investment portfolio. Qur investment portfolio is generally
comprised of U.S. money market accounts and cash deposits. Qur
policy is to place these investments in instruments that meet high
credit quality standards and have maturities of less than one and
one half years with an overall average malurity of less than S0
days. These securities are subject to interest rate nisk and could
decline in valug if there is a major change in interest rates. Due to
the short duration of the securities in which we invest and the con-
servative nature of our investment porticlio, a 10% move in inter-
est rates over a one-year period would have an immaterial effect
on our financial position, resulls of operations and cash flows.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk. The majority of our sales
and research and development and markeling expenses are trans-
acted in U.S. dollars. We purchase wafers from Fujitsu in
Japanese Yen and have limited accounts payable and receivable
transactions in Canadian dollars. However, payments from
Japanese customers provide yen currency for approximately 57%
of our wafer purchase costs. We do not use financial derivatives to

hedge our prices, therefore, we have some exposure fo foreign
currency price fluctuations. Gains and losses from such fluctua-
tions have not been material to us to date.

At December 31, 2007, we had floating rate debt outstanding of
$700,000. A 10% move in interest rates would not have a material
effact on our financial stalements.

interest payable on the Company's mortgage note is fixed at
6.17% over the term of the loan. In light of the above, changes in
interest rates will nol materially affect our future eamings or cash
flows.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Fimm

Stockholders and Board of Direclors
Ramtron Intemational Corporation
Colorado Springs, Colorado

We have audited the accompanying consolidaled balance sheet of Ramtron Intemational Corporation {the “Company”) as of
December 34, 2007, and the relaled consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), stockholders” equity and
cash flows for the year then ended. We also have audited the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007, based on criteria established in Interal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission ("COS0"). The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for main-
taining effective intemal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of intemal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting included in Item 8A. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consalidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company's intemal control over
financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consofidated financial state-
ments are free of material misslatement and whether effective intenal control over financial reporting was maintained in ali material
respects. Our audit of the consolidated financial statements included examining, on a lest basis, evidence supporting the amaunts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant eslimates made by man-
agement, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audil of intemal control over financial reporting included oblain-
ing an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and eval-
uating the design and operaling effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opin-
1ons.

A company's intemat control over financial reporting is a process designed o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. A company's internal contro! over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) per-
tain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the Company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial state-
ments in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and diractors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of ils inherent limitations, internal cantrol over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness lo future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in con-
ditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stalements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Ramtron Intemational Corporation as of December 31, 2007, and the results of its operations and its cash flows in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, Ramtron Intemational Corporation main-
tained, in all material respects, effective interna! control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on crileria established
in Intemal Control-Integrated Framewaork issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{("COSQ™),

Ehrhardt Keefe Steiner & Hottman PC

February 25, 2008
Denver, Colorado
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Ramtron Intemational Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidaled balance sheet of Ramtron Intemational Corporation as of December 31, 2006, and the
related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), stockhoiders' equity, and cash flows for each of the
years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2006, and the refated financia! statement schedule. These consolidated financial slate-
menls are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to 2xpress an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audils in accordance with the slandards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
malerial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on & test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audils provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Ramtron International Corporation as of December 31, 2006, and the results of its operations and comprehensive incoma (loss) and ils
cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2006, and the related financia! statement schedule, in con-
formity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in note 1 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment.

KPMG LLP

February 12, 2007
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RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
I December 31, 2007 and 2006

: {in thousands, except share dala) 2007 2006
]
| ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,828 $ 4,305
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $384 and $351, respectively 9,490 7,183
Inventonies, net 6,342 6,006
Deferred income taxes, net 286 -
Other current assels 789 494
Total current assats 23,735 17,988
Preperty, plant and equipment, net 4987 4 527
Goodwill, net 231 2,038
Inlangible assels, net 7.963 1.752
Deferred income taxes, nel 7.300 -
Other assels 230 152
Total assels $ 46,526 $ 32457
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities;
\ Accounts payable $ 4,168 $ 3023
Accrued liabilities 2,416 1,317
Deferred revenue 649 1,040
Current portion of long-term promissory notes 1,040 1,366
/ Total current Kabililies 8,573 6,746
Deferred revenue 1,854 2.780
Long-term promissory notas 4,894 5,859
f Total kiabilities 15,321 15,385
_/ Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares
authorized: 0 shares issued and outstanding - -
Common stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized: 26,184,085
and 25,107,788 shares issued, respectively and
26,124,869 and 25,107,788 shares oulstanding, respectively 262 251
Less: Treasury siock of 59,216 at cost (241) -
Additiona! paid-in capital 246,513 243,206
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,301 136
Accumulated deficit {216,630) (226,521)
Total stockholders’ equity 31,205 17,072
Commitments and contingencies {Noles 5, 6 and 14)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 46,526 $ 32,457

|l

— ———

Sed accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

{in thousands, except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005
Revenue:
Product sales $49,422 $39,095 $32,664
License and development fees 77 77 16
Royalties 625 669 762
Customer-sponsored research and development 330 - 250
' 51,094 40,481 34,392
Costs and expenses:
Cost of product sales 23,439 18,438 15,999
Provision for inventory write-off - - 876
Research and development 10,573 9,885 7,204
Customer-sponsored research and development 264 - 32
General and administrative 7,053 5,149 4415
Sales and markeling 7,005 6,034 5,029
Write-off of in-process research and development - - 1,067
Write-down of debt discount and loss on extinguishment - - 1,624
48,34 39,506 36,625
Operaling income (loss) from continuing operations 2,760 975 (2,233)
Interest expense, related party - - {162)
Interest expense, other (495} (612 (592)
Cther income, net 148 154 S5
Incoma (loss) from continuing operations before income tax provision 2413 517 (2.642)
Income tax benefit (provision) 7478 {60) -
Income {loss) from continuing operations 9,891 457 (2.642)
Loss from discontinued operations - - (3,849)
Net income (loss) $ 9,891 $ 457 $ (6,491)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments $ 1,165 $ 2 $ 15
Comprehensive income (loss) $11,056 $ 478 $ (6,376)
Eamings {loss) per share:
Basic:
Income (loss) from cantinuing operations $ 039 $ 002 $ (0.11)
Loss from discontinued operations - - (0.17)
Total $ 039 $ 002 $ (0.28)
Diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 037 $ 0.02 $ (0.11)
Loss from discontinued operations - -~ (0.17)
Total $ 037 $ 002 $ (0.28)
Weighted average shares outstanding: T T T
Basic 25,124 24 A78 23,089
Diluted 26,403 24 957 23,089

Ses accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
{in thousands, except par value amounts)

\_ s

Common Stock Accumulated
($.01) Par Value Additional Other Total
———— Treasury Faid-in  Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders'
Shares  Amount  Stock Capital Income Deficit Equity

Balances, December 31, 2004 22,380 $224 $ - $235455 $ - $(22048T)  $15,192
Exercise of options 56 1 - 114 - - 15
Issuance of stock options for

services provided - - - 45 - - 45
Stock issued for acquisition 1,952 19 -~ 5499 - - 5518
Cumulative foreign currency

translation adjustments - - - - 115 - 115
Net loss - - - - - {6,491) {6,491)
Balances, December 31, 2005 24,388 244 - 241,13 15 (226,976) 14,494
Exercise of oplions 450 4 - 1,101 - - 1,105
Stock-based compensation expense - - - 995 - - 935
Issuance of restricted stock 270 3 - {3 - - -
Cumulative foreign currency

translation adjustments - - - - 21 - 21
Net income - - - - - 457 457
Balances, December 31, 2006 25,108 $251 - 243,206 136 (226,521) 17,072
Exercise of options 435 4 - 9499 - - 1,003
Repurchases of commion stock (59) - (241) - - - (241)
Stock-based compensation expense - - - 2,315 - - 2,315
tssuance of restricled stock, net

of forfeitures B41 7 - N - - -
Cumutative foreign cumency

fransiation adjustments - - - - 1,165 - 1,165
Net income - - - - - 6,891 9,891
Balances, December 31, 2007 26,125 §262 $(241)  $246,513 $1,304 $(216,630)  §31,205

e

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2005

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operaling activilies:
Net income (loss) $9,891 $ 457 $(6.491)

Adjustments used to reconcile net income {loss) lo net cash provided
by (used in) operating aclivilies:

Loss from discontinued operalions -~ - 3,848
Depreciation and amortization 2,156 1,998 1,458
Stock-based compensation 2,315 995 45
Benefit for deferred income taxes (7.586) - -
Write-off of in-process research and development - - 1,067
Amortization of debt discount, including non-cash loss on extinguishment - - 1,153
Imputed interest on note payable 75 85 94
Loss on abandonment of patents 37 78 138
Loss (Gain) on disposition of equipment 7 - {255)
Provision for inventory write-off and warranty charge 314 340 876
Changes in assels and liabilities:
Accounts receivable {2.307) (949) 1415
Inventaries (650) 72 (3.383)
Accounts payable and accrued fiabilities 1,973 (248) {1,020
Deferred revenue (1,017) {1,086) {1431)
Other (373) 423 {37)
Net cash {used by) discontinued operations - - {414)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activilies 4,835 2,865 (2,936) ﬂ
Cash flows from investing activities;
Cash paid for acquisition net of cash acquired - - {2,260)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {1,641) (1,554) (1,389)
Proceeds from sale of equipment and patents - - 268
Payments for inteflectual property {69) 97) (512)
Net cash provided by discontinued operations - : - 1,602
~ Net cash used in investing activilies (1,710 (1.651) (2.291)
Cash flows from financing acivities: '
Debt issuance costs ' - - (121} K_
Proceeds from term loan & mortgage loan - - 7,200 '
Proceeds from line of credit - - 5,850
Payments on iine of credit - - (5,850
Purchase of treasury stock (241) - -
Principal payments on promissory notes {1,366) {1.351) {5.120)
Issuance of common stock, related to oplions . 1,003 1,105 114
Nel cash (used in) provided by financing activities . (604) {246) 2,073
Effect of foreign currency 2 (8) 115
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,523 950 (3,039)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4,305 3,45 6,304
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ' $ 6,628 $ 4,305 $ 3,345

s —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RAMTRON INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Description of Business. We are a fabless semiconducter com-
pany that designs, develops and markets specialized semiconduc-
lor memory, microcontroller, and integrated semiconductor solu-
tions, used in many markets for a wide range of applications. We
pioneered the integration of ferroelectric materials into semicon-
ductor products, which enabled the development of a new class of
nonvolatile memory products, cafled ferroelectric random access
memory (F-RAM). F-RAM products merge the advantages of mul-
tiple memory technologies into a single device that refains infor-
mation without a power source, can be read from and written to at
very fast speeds, written to many times, consumes low amounls of
power, and can simplify the design of electronic systems. In many
cases, we are the sole provider of F-RAM enabled semiconductor
products, which facilitates close customer relationships, long appli-
cation lifecycles and the potential for high-margin sales.

We also integrate analog and mixed-signal functions such as
microprocessor supervision, tamper detection, limekeeping, and
power failure detection onto a single device with cur F-RAM. This
has enabled a new class of products thal addresses the growing
markst need for more efficient and cost effective semiconducior
products.

The Company's revenue is derived primarily from the sale of ils
products and from license and development arrangements entered
into with a fimited number of established semiconductor manufac-
turers involving the development of specific applications of the
Company's technologies. Other revenue Is generated from cus-
tomer-sponsored research and development revernue. Product
sales have been made to various customers for use in a variety of
applications including utility meters, office equipment, consumer
slectronics, telecommunications, accelerator boards, disk array
controllers, personal computers and industrial control devices.

Mushkin was classified as a discontinued operation during the third
quarter of 2005. See Note 11 of these Notes of Consclidated
Financial Statements below for further discussion of Mushkin.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in con-
formity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimales and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assels and liabili-
ties at the date of the financial statements and the reporied

amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periogds.

Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions
include the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
intangibles and goodwill; valuation of allowances for receivables,
invenlories and deferred income taxes; and valuation of share-
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based payment arrangements. Actual results could differ from
those estimales.

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying financia! stale-
ments include the consolidation of accounts for the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiaries, Ramtron LLC, Ramiron Canada, Inc.,
Ramtron Kabushiki Kaisha (Ramtron K.K.), and Ramiron Asia Ltd.
All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been
gliinated in consotidation.

Cash antt Cash Equivalents. The Company considers all cash
and highy liquid investments purchased with an average maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market
value. Cosl is delermined using standard costs, which approxi-
mates average cost. The Company provides for an allowance for
estimated obsolescence or lack of marketability for the difference
between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value
based upon assumptions about future demand and market condi-
tions.

Deferved Income Taxes. Defemed income taxes are recorded to
reflect the lax consequences of differences between the tax basis
of assels and liabilities and their financial reporting basis and oper-
aling loss and tax credit camy forwards. Refer to Nole 10 for the
types of differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred
income tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply {o laxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settied, The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilites of a change in tax rales is recognized in
income in the period that includes the enaciment dale. Deferred
income taxes are classified as a net current or non-current asset or
liability based on the classification of the related asset or liability for
financial reporting purposes. A deferred tax asset or liability that is
nof related to an asset or liability for fnancial reporting is classified
according to the expected reversal date. We record a valuation
altowance to reduce deferred tax assets to an a amount

we believa is more likely than not expectad to be realized.

Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation
and amorization are provided using the straight-ine method over
the estimaled useful lives of the respective assels and commence
once the assets are ready for their intended use. Maintenance and
repairs are expensed as incumed and improvements are capital-
ized.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Goodwill represents the excess
of the cosls over the fair value of assets of businesses acquired.
Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and determined to have an indefinite useful fife are not amortized,
but instead are tested for impairment at least annually, or more fre-
quently if events or changes in circumstances indicate thal good-




will may be impaired in accordance with the provision of FASB
Statement 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" (FAS 142).
The Company performed its annual goodwill impatrment testing as
of December 31, 2007, and determined that no impairments
existed at that date. Intangible assets are recorded at cost and are
amortized on a s{raight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
ranging from 15 to 17 years, and reviewed for impairment in accor-
dance with FASB Statemenl 144, "Accounting for Impaimment for
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets™ (FAS 144). The amounts capital-
ized for patents include the cos! of acquinng and defending the
patent. The change in camying valve of the goodwill between
years is solely due to foreign cumency rale changes.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. In accordance with FAS 144,
long-lived assets held and used by the Company and intangible
assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment, when-
ever events or changes in circumstances indicate that camrying
amounts of assels may not be recoverable. The Company evalu-
ates recoverability of assets to be held and used by comparing the
carmying amount of an asset to the future net undiscounted cash
flows to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered
to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by
the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceed the
fair value of the asset calculated using a future discounted cash
flow analysis. Considerable judgment is required lo project such
cash flows and, if required, estimate the fair value of the impaired
long-fived asset.

Accrued Liabilities, Accrued liabilities consist of the following as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006:

(in thousands) 2007 2006

Compensation related $2,036 $ an

Other 380 406
1,347

Tolal $2,416

Revenue Recognition. The Company recognizes revenue from
product sales when tile transfers, the customer takes ownership
and assumes risk of loss, collection of the relevant receivable is
probable, persuasive evidence of an amangement exists and the
sales price is fixed or determinable, which is generally at the fime
of shipment. In the event a siluation occurs to create a post-ship-
ment obligation, we woutd defer revenue recognition until the spe-
cific obfigation was satisfied. We defer recognition of sales to dis-
tributors when we are unable to make a reasonable estimale of
product relums due to insufficient historical product return informa-
tion. The revenue recorded is dependent upon estimates of
expected customer retums and sales discounts based upon both
historical data eénd management estimates,

Revenus from licensing programs is recognized over the period
the Company is required to provide services under the terms of the
agreemenl. Revenue from research and development aclivities
that are funded by customers are recognized as the services are
performed.

Revenue from royallies is recognized upon the notification to us of
shipment of product from the Company’s technology license part-
ners to direct customers.

Advertising. The Company expenses advertising costs as
incurred, Adverlising expenses for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005 were $343,000, $231,000, and $198,000,
respectively.

Eamings (Loss) Per Share. The Company calculates its eam-
ings {loss}) per share pursuant to SFAS No. 128, "Eamings Per
Share™ (SFAS No. 128). Under SFAS No. 128, basic eamings
(loss) per share is computed by dividing reported income (loss}
available to common stockholders by weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted eamings
{loss} per share reflects the potential dilution assuming the
issuance of common shares for all dihuive potential common
shares outstanding during the period. In periods where the
Company records a net loss, all polentially dilutive securities,
including warrants and stock oplions, would be anti-dilutive and
thus, are excludad from diluted loss per share,
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The following table sets forth the calculation of net income (loss) per common share for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005;

December 31,

(in thousands, excep! per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005
Income (loss) from continuing operations $9.891 $ 457 $(2,642)
Income (loss} from discontinued operations $ - 5 - $(3,849)
—_—
Net income (loss) applicable to common shares $9.891 $ 457 $(6,491)
Common and common equivalent shares outstanding:

Historical common shares outstanding at beginning of year (not including

unreleased restricted stock) 24,838 24,388 22,380

Weighted average common equivalent shares issued during year 286 P 709

Weighted average common shares-basic 25124 24,478 23,089

Weighted average comman equivalent shares outstanding during year 1,279 479 -

Weighted average common shares-diluted 26,403 24957 23,089
Income (loss) from continuing operations per basic share $ 039 $ 002 $ (040
Loss from discontinued operalions per basic share - - {0.47)
Eamings (loss} per basic share $ 039 $ 002 $ (0.28)
Income (loss) from continuing operations per diluted share $ 037 $ 0.02 $ (0.11)
Loss from discontinued operations per diluted share - - (0.17)
Earnings (loss) per diluted share $ 037 $ 002 $ (0.28)

T ————————

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company had several equity instruments or obligations that could cause
future dilution to the Company’s common stockholders and which were not classified as outstanding common shares of the Company.
The following table details the various equity awards that were excluded from the eamings {loss) per common share calculation because
their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive. These various equity awards could become dilutive in the future if the average share price
increases or certain performance conditions are met:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Warranls - 1425 2,31
Options 314 5028 6.872
Restricted stock 575 270 -

Stock-Based Compensation. At December 31, 2007, the Company had three stock-based compensation plans, which are more fully
described in Note 7 of these Notes of Consolidated Financia! Statements below.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for awards granted under stock-based incentive plans using the intrinsic method of
expense recognition, which follows the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No, 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued 1o
Employees” (APB 25) and related interpretations. Compensation cost, if any, was recorded based an the excess of the quoted market
price at grant date over the amount an employee must pay 1o acquire the stock. Under the provisions of APB 25, there was no com-
pensation expense resulting from the issuance of stock optiens by the Company as the exercise price was equivalent to the fair market
value al the date of grant.




Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R,
"Share-Based Payments” (SFAS 123R) and related Secunties and
Exchange Commission rules included in Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 107. The Company elected the modified prospective transition
method as permitted by SFAS 123R and, accordingly, prior periods
have not been restated lo reflect the impact of SFAS 123R. Under
this transition method, compensalion cost recognized for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2007 includes: (i) compen-
satien cost for all stock-based awards granted prior to, but not yet
vested as of, January 1, 2006 (based on the grani-date fair value
eslimated in accordance with the ariginal provisions of SFAS 123R
and previously presented in the pro forma footnote disclosures),
and (ii) compensation cost for all stock-based awards granted sub-
sequent to January 1, 2006 (based on the grant-date fair value
estimated in accordance with the new provisions of SFAS 123R).

The estimated value of the Company's stock-based option and
award plans, less expected forfeilures, is amortized over the
awards' respective vesting period on a siraight-line basis.

The Company granled restricted stock awards, restricted by a
service condition, with a vesling period of one year and restricted
stock awards 1o cerain executive employees contingen! upon sat-
isfaction of a perfarmance condition with a vesting period of thres
years. Restricted stock awards are valued using the fair market
value of our common stock as of the grant date. The Company
recognizes compensation expense, net of estimated forfeituras, on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Estimated forfeitures
are reviewed periodically and changes to the estimated forfeitures
are adjusted through current period eamings. The remaining
unvesled shares are subject to forfeiture and restrictions on sale or
transfer up until the ves! date.

The Company also granted nonqualified stock options at an exer-
cise price equal to tha fair market value of the Company's common
stock on the grant date. The Company applies the Black-Scholes
valuation method to compute the estimated fair value of the stock
options and recognizes compensation expense, net of estimated
forfeitures on a straight-line basis so that the award is fully
expensed at the vesting date. Generally, stock options vest 25
percent on each anniversary of the grant date, are fully vested four
years from the grant date, and have a contractual term of ten
years.

Fair Value of Financial instruments. The Company's financial
instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, short-term trade
receivables and payables. The camying values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, and short-lerm trade receivables and
payables approximate fair value due to their shor-lerm nature,
The fair value of the Company's promissory notes were approxi-
mately $5,614,000 and $6,329,000 as of December 31, 2007 and
2008, respectively, using a discounted cash flow approach. See
Note 5 above for the related camrying value of these notes.

Reclassifications. Cerain amounts recorded in previous periods
have been reclassified to confoerm to the current year presentation.

Accounting Developments. In February 2007, the FASB issued
SAS No. 159, "Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities,” or SFAS No. 159. Under SFAS No. 159, entities may
choose to measure al fair value many financial instruments and
certain other items that are not currently required to be measured
at fair value. SFAS No. 159 also establishes recognition, presen-
tation, and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate compar-
isons between entities that choose different measurement attrib-
utes for similar types of assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 159 does
not affect any existing accounting literature that requires certain
assets and liabilities to be carried at fair value. SFAS No. 158 was
effective for us beginning January 1, 2008. Al this ime, we do not
expect the adoption of this standard o have any impact on our
financia! position or resulls of operations.

In Seplember 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value
Measurements,” which was effective for us beginning January 1,
2008 and provides a definition of fair value, establishes a frame-
work for measuring fair valye, and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements for future transactions. We do nol expect the
adoption of this pmnouncement 1o have a material impact on our
financial position or results of operations.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No.
48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes™ ("FIN 48%) on
January 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, we
recognized no material adjustments to liabilities or stockholders'
equity. See Note 10 below.

NOTE 2. INVENTORIES:

Inventories consist of;
December 31,
{in thousands) 2007 2006
Finished goods $2425 $1,915
Work in process 4,063 4,207
Obsolescence reserve {146) (116)
$6,342 $6,006
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NOTE 3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

Property, plani and equipment consists of:

Estimated Dacember 31,
Useful Lives
(in thousands) {In Years) 2007 2006
Land - § 658 § 668
Buildings and improvements  18and 10 8924 8942
Equipment 5 12,386 12781
Office fumilure and equipment  Sand 7 623 559
22611 22950

(17.624) (18.423)
$4,987 $4527

Less accumutated depreciation

Depreciation expense for property, plant and equipment was
$1,563,000, $1,426,000, and $1,108,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Maintenance and repairs expense was $1,714,000,
$1,399,000, and $910,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
included in maintenance are software maintenance contracts.

NOTE 4. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

Goodwill and other intangible assets consist of.

December 31,
(in thousands) 2007 2006
Goodwill $ 6254 $ 5,9
Accurnulated amortization {3.943) (3,943)
Goodwill, net $ 231 $ 2,038
Patents and core technology $11.815 $10,922
Accumulated amorlization (3.852) {(3.170)
Intangible assets, net $ 7,963 $ 7,752

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $593,000,
$572,000 and $350,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Estimated amortization expense for intangible assets is $600,000
annually in 2008 through 2012 and $5 million thereafter.

NOTE 5. LONG-TERM DEBT.

{in thousands) 2007 2006
Long-term debt:
National Semiconductor

promissory nole $1284 $ 1,459
Mortgage note 3,983 4,099
Silicon Valley Bank Term Loan 667 1,667

5934 7,225

Long-term debt current maturities {1,040) {1,366)
Total $4,894 $ 5,859

in March 2002, we signed an agreement {o issue $8 milion of &
year, 5% fixed rate, convertible debentures and warrants to pur-
chase 700,000 shares of the Company's common stock. The
debentures were secured by a Deed of Trust on our headguarters
facility in Colorado Springs, Colorado and by a security interest in
certain of our accounts receivable and patents. On July 1, 2005,
the Company retired the aforementioned debenlures. The war-
rants lo purchase approximately 700,000 shares of the Company's
comman stock al $3.04 per share that were issued with the deben-
tures remain outstanding at December 31, 2007. Approximalely
177,000 shares were issued as the result of warrant exercises in
January 2008. Interest paid to the debenture holders during 2007,
2006 and 2005 was $0, $0 and approximately $155,000, respec-
tively. As of December 31, 2007 no amounts were outstanding on
these debentures.

On July 1, 2005, the Company finalized a 34 million revolving
secured credit facility with Silicon Valley Bank, a subsidiary of
Silicon Valley Bancshares. The revolving facility provides for inter-
ast at & fioaling rate equal to the prime fending rate plus 0.50% per
annum, 7.75% at December 31, 2007, a8 minimum interest rate of
6.00% per year and a term of two years. On September 15, 2005,
we amended this credit facility to include a $3,000,000 term toan
payabls in 36 equal instailmenis over three years at an interesl
rate equal to the prime lending rate plus 1% per annum, 8.25% as
of Decamber 31, 2007. Security for the credit facility includes all of
the Company's assets except for our real estate. The Company
also entered into an Intellectual Property Security Agreement with
Silicon Valley Bank that secures the Company's obligations under
the credit faility by granting Silicon Valley Bank a securily interest
in all of the Company's right, title and interest in, to and under its
intellectual property. The Company used $3.6 million of proceeds
from the revolving credit line to refire the convertible debentures.
The Company's available funds at December 31, 2007 under this
revolving credit agreement were $4 million. At December 31,
2007, the Company had no outstanding balance related to the
revolving credit facility. The Company's commitment fee is no
greater than 36,000 per quarter.




The Company is required to comply with certain covenants under
the credit facility, including without limitation, minimum fixed charge
covenan! ratios, fiquidity coverage ratios, and mainlain certain
leverage ratios, and restrictions on certain actions without the con-
sent of Silicon Valley Bank such as the disposal and acquisition of
its business or property, changes in business, ownership or loca-
tion of collateral, mergers or acquisilions, investments and frans-
actions with affiliates, and paying subordinated debi.

On December 30, 2005, the Company entered into a Loan
Modification Agreement which completed the restructuring of its
Amended and Restated Loan Agreement with Silicon Valley Bank,
a subsidiary of Silicon Valley Bancshares. The Loan Modification
Agreement provided for the waiver of the Company's event of
default on October 31, 2005 of failure to meet the maximum senior
leverage ratic covenant and the liquidity coverage covenant,
revised the financial covenants to befter reflect the Company’s
operations, and included a provision for the Company's investment
in its Canadian subsidiary and payments pursuant to the recent
mortgage financing of the Company's Colorado Springs facility.

On December 29, 2006, the Company entered into a Third
Amendment lo Amended and Reslaled Loan and Security
Agreement with Silicon Valley Bank. The loan modification agree-
ment revised the financial covenants for debt service to better
reflect the Company’s operations and removes capital expenditure
{imits and investment limits relating to our Canadian subsidiary.

On March 28, 2007, the Company entered into a Fourth
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Loan and Security

Agreement with Silicon Valley Bank. The loan modification granled
more favorable restrictions relating to the Company’s foreign
account receivable borrowing base, removed prepayment penal-
lies associated with our committed revolving line and extended our
revolving credil line to March 27, 2009. The Company was in com-
pliance with all revised financial covenants as of December 31,
2007.

In April 2004, the Company entered into a patent interference set-
tiement agreement with National Semiconductor Corporation. The
Company is required lo pay National Semiconductor Corporation
$250,000 annually through 2013. As of December 31, 2007, the
present value of this promissory note is $1,284,000 and the inter-
est expense accrued in 2007 was $75,000. The Company dis-
counted the note at 5.75%. The face value of this nole as of
December 31, 2007 was $1,500,000.

On December 15, 2005, Ramtron, through its subsidiary, Ramtron
LLC, for which Ramtron Intermational Corporation serves as sole
member and scle manager, closed on its mortgage loan facility
with American National Insurance Company. Ramtron LLC
entered into a promissory note evidencing the loan with the pringi-
pal amount of $4,200,000, with a maturity date of January 1, 2016,
bearing interest at 6.17%. The Company is obligated to make
monthly principal and interest payments of $30,500 until January
2016 and a balloon payment of $2,757,000 in January 2016.
Ramtron LLC also entered into an agreement for the benefit of
American National insurance Company securing the Company's
real estate as collateral for the mortgage loan facility.

Maturities of the Company’s outstanding promissory notes are as foliows as of December 31, 2007:

(in thousands) 2008

2009

2010 201 202 Thereafter

Long-term debt obligations $1.040

$ 382 $ 390

$ 399 $ 409

NCTE 6. COMMITMENTS:

—

Lease Commitments. The Company has commitments under non-cancelable operating leases expiring through 2009 for various equip-
ment, software, and facilities. Minimum future annual lease payments for leases that have inilial or remaining nen-cancelable terms in

excess of one year as of December 31, 2007 are as follows:

2008 $1,209,000
2009 504,000
2010 13000

$1,726,000

Total ren! expense on all operating leases was $1,597,000, $720,000, and $392.000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Manufacturing Alliances. The Company has enlered into a man-
ufacturing agreement with Fujitsu Limited for the supply of its F-
RAM products. The manufacturing agreement provides only for a
call on the manufacturing capacity of the vendor. The product will
be supplied to the Company at prices negotiated based on current
market conditions,

The Company and Texas Instruments entered inte a commercial
manufacturing agreement for F-RAM memory- products. The
Company will provide design, testing and other activities associ-
ated with product development efforts, and Texas Instruments will
provide foundry services for a minimum period of two (2) years with
one year automatic renewal penods, subject lo certain obligations
for us with respect to minimum orders and negotiated pricing.

NOTE 7. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION:
Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The Company has three stock option plans: the 1995 Stock Option
Plan, as amended (the "1995 Plan®), the 1999 Stock Option Plan
(the 1999 Plan®}, and the 2005 Incentive Award Plan (the “2005
Plan"), collective, the "Plans." The Plans reserve 10,700,000
shares of the Company's common stock for issuance and permit
the issuance of non-qualified stock oplions. The exercise price of
all non-qualified stock options must be equal to al least §5% in the
1995, 1999 and 2005 Pians, and the maximum term of each grant
is ten years. The 1995 Plan and 2005 Plan also permit the
issuance of incentive slock options. in addition, the 2005 Plan per-
mits the issuance of restricted stock. Reslricted stock grants gen-
erally vesl one year from the date of grant. Options granted
become exercisable in hull or in installments pursuant to the terms
of each agreement evidencing options granted. The exercise of
stock options and issue of restricted stock is satisfied by issuing
authorized unissued common stock or treasury stock. As of
December 31, 2007, the Company had not granted any incentive
slock options. The number of shares available for future grant
under these plans was 905,273 as of December 31, 2007.

Total stock-based compensation expense recognized in our con-
solidated statement of income for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006 is as follows:

Income Statement Classifications
December 31,

{in thousands) 2007 2006
Cost of sales § 159 $ 99
Research and development 399 19
Sales and marketing 347 116
General and administrative 1.410 589
Tota) $2,315 3995

As of December 31, 2007, there was gpproximately $2.4 million of
unrecognized compensation costs, adjusted for estimated forfei-
tures, related to non-vested oplions granted to the Company's
employees and directors, which will be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 3 years. Total unrecognized compen-
sation will be adjusted for future changes in estimated forfeitures.

The following table sets forth the pro forma amounts of nel loss
and net loss per share for the year ended December 31, 2005 that
would have resulted if we had accounted for our employee stock
plans under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123:

December 31,

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2005
Net income (loss) as reported $(6.491)
Stock-based employee compensation cost
included in net income {loss) as reported -
Less: Stock-based employee compensation
cost that would have been included in net
income (loss) if the fair value method had
been applied to all awards 3162
Pro forma net income (loss) as if the fair
value method had been applied to all awards $(9,653)
Eamings {loss) per share
As reported:

Basic $ {0.28)

Diluted : $ (0.28)
Pro forma:

Basic $ (042)

Diluted $ (042
Stock Options

The exercise price of each slock option granted under the
Company's Plans equals 100% of the market value of the
Company's common stock on the dale of grant, The options have
a contractual life of len years and generally vest ratably over three
to four years from the date of grant.

For grants issued during 2007, the fair value for stock options was
estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Schales option pric-
ing model, which requires management to make certain assump-
tions. Expected volatility was estimated based on the historical
volalility of the Company’s stock over the past 6.25 years. The
average expected term was estimated by taking the weighted aver-
age of the vesting term and the contractual term of the option, as
permitter] by the SAB 107. We based the risk-free interest rate that
we use in the option valuation modsl on U.S. Treasury Notes with
remaining terms similar to the expected terms on the options.




Forfeitures are estimated al the time of grant based upan historical experience. We o not anlicipate paying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future and therefore use an expected dividend yield of zero in the option pricing model.

The assumptions used to value option grants for the years ending December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Risk free interest rate 4.46% 481% 4.00%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected lives 6.25 years 6.25 years 4.0 years
Expected volalility 76% 86% 84%

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $2.75, $2.33, and
$2.36, respectively.

On December 30, 2005, the Company’s board of directors accelerated the vesting of all outstanding and unvested stock options that had
an exercise price equal to or greater than $2.75 issued to current employees. The impact of the acceleration on net income as shown
in the above table was an increase in pro forma stock-based compensation expense of approximately $1.1 miltion in 2005. Aside from
the acceleration of the vesting date, the terms and conditions of the stock option agreements governing the undertying stock options
remain unchanged. In conneclicn with the acceleration of vesting, executive officers and certain employees of Ramtron entered into
agreements restricting their ability to sell shares acquired from the exercise of the accelerated options for the term of the original option.

The purpose of the acceleration was to avoid recognizing future compensation expense associated with the accelerated options upan
the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, "Share Based Payments ("SFAS No. 123R"). SFAS No. 123R sets forth accounting requirements for
"share-based” compensation to employees and requires companies to recognize in the income statement the grant-date fair value of
stock options and other equity-based compensation.

A summary of the changes in stock options oulstanding during the year ended December 31, 2007 are presented below:

Number of Weighted Average
Option Shares Exercise Price Per Share
(in thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 6,438
Granted 172 §4.03
Forfeited {107) $2.87
Expired (571) $6.90
Exercised {435) $2.31
Quistanding at December 31, 2007 6,097

As of December 31, 2007, 4,312,000, of the above oplicns were exercisable, respectively, with weighted average exercise prices of
$3.44.

The total intrinsic value, which is the amount by which the stack price exceeded the exercise price of the oplions on the date of exercise,
of options exercised during the years December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $344,000, $358,000 and $83,000, respectively.
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The following table sets forth the exercise price range, number of shares, weighted average exercise price and remaining contractual
lives by groups of options:

Weighted Average
Number of Remaining

Options Exercise Contractual Aggregate

Exercise Price Range Qutstanding Price Life Intrinsic Value
(in thousands) (in thousands)

$185-3222 796 $194 499
$229-%229 1426 2.29 7.89
$232-83M 1420 304 6.47
$372-3407 1,810 3.68 8.32
$4.15-325.08 645 121 259

6,097 3342 6.75 $7,284
Ending vested and expected fo vest 5318 $343 6.41 6,518
Ending exercisable 4,312 §3.44 518 5,607

Number of
Options Weighted Average
Exercise Price Range Exercisable Exsrcise Price
(in thousands)
$185-%222 588 $1.95
$229-%229 1,082 2.2
$232-%3M 1,379 3.04
$3.72.84.07 618 3.78
$4.15- $25.08 645 1.27
4312 $3.44

The intrinsic value is calculated as the differance between the market value as of December 31, 2007 and the exercise price of the
shares. The closing market value as of December 31, 2007 was $4.30 as reported by the Nasdaq Giobal Market.

Cash received from oplion exercises for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $1 miflion. The actual {ax benefil realized for the tax
deduction fram option exercises was $344,000.

Restricted Stock
On February 23, 2007, the Company granted 721,000 shares of restricted stock at a market value of $2.81 per share. Awards for 86,000
shares vest in one year based on a service condition, the remaining vest in approximately three years if certain financial goals are

achieved. As of December 31, 2007, there was approximately $1 million of unrecognized compensation costs related to non-vested
restricted shares, which will be recognized over a welghted-average period of 1.8 years,
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A summary of non-vested restricted shares during the year ended
December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Weighted Average
Number of Grant Date Fair
Restricted Shares  Value Per Share
{in thousands)
OQutstanding at
December 31, 2006 270 $3.72
Grants 721 $2.81
Forfeited (80) $2.97
Vested/Released {256) $3.72
Quistanding at
December 31, 2007 655 $2.81

Warrants

Warranis to purchase shares of the Company's common stock are
as follows:

Exercise
Number of Price
Shares Per Share
{in thousands)
Quistanding and exercisable
at December 31, 2004 and 2005 23N $1.83-36.68
Cancelled {263) $3.04
Issued 263 $3.04
Outstanding and exercisable
at December 31, 2006 2,31 $1.88-$6.88
Cancelled (725) $4.11-36.88
Qutstanding and exercisable
at December 31, 2007 1,606 $1.88-83.04

All of the outstanding warrants are currently exercisable. Of such
warrants: warrants to purchase 700,000 shares with an exercise
price of $3.04 expire in March 2008; and wamanis to purchase
906,000 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $1.88
expire in September 2008 and August 2009.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the
Company recorded no dividends, respectively.

NOTE 8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Transactions with the Fund, The National Electrical Benefit
Fund (the "Fund"} is a principal stockholder of the Company.

Pursuant to @ Stock and Wamant Purchase Agreemenl dated
March 13, 1989 between the Company arnd the Fund, as
amended, the Company agreed to pay to the Fund, for as long as
the Fund owns at least 5% of the outslanding shares of the
Company's common stock, a reasonable monthly consulling fee of
not more than $5,000 and lo reimburse the Fund for all oul-of-
pocket expenses incurred in monitoring the Fund's investment in
the Company. [During 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company was
obligated to pay to the Fund approximately $60,000 per year in
payment of such fees and expenses. Payments made for these
obfigations were $0, $105,000, and $0 during 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. The amounts of $90,000 and $30,000 related
to this obligation are included in accrued liabililies as of December
31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Transactions Involving Infineon Technologies AG. Infineon
Technologies AG was a principal stockholder of the Company until
November 20, 2006,

In March 2002, the Company issued a $3 miilion, 5% interest, 5-
year debenture to Infineon and a warmant to purchase approxi-
mately 262,663 shares of the Company's common stock at $3.04
per share. The Infineon debenture was secured by a security inter-
est the Company granted to Infineon in certain of its accounts
receivable and patents, On July 1, 2005, the Company retired the
aforementioned debenture and the warranl remained outstanding
until its transfer (described below) in November 2006. Interesl
paid to Infineon during 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $0, $0 and
approximately $39,000, respectively.

In November 2006, Infineon Technologies AG transferred to
Qimonda AG, an affiliate of Infineon, 4,430,005 shares of the
Company’s common stock and its warrant to purchase 262,633
additional shares of the Company's common stock (collectively,
the "Qimonda Shares”). The Company entered into a Registralion
Rights Agreement with the purchasers of the Qimonda Shares.
The purchase of the Shares from Qimonda by institutional and
other accredited investors unaffiliated with Ramtron was a privately
negotiated transaction from which the Company received no pro-
ceeds other than the reimbursement of costs associaled with reg-
istering the Shares.
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NOTE 9. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION AND  Income tax expense (benefil) attributable to income (loss) before

OTHER NON-CASH iTEMS: income taxes consists of:
{in thousands) 2007 2006 200§ (in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Interest $ 570 $585 § 437  Cument:
Income taxes 125 - 60
Common stock issued in acquisition - . - 5519 Federa $ 108 § 60 § -
Disposal of fully depreciated assets - © State - - -
with no proceeds 2415 131 3810 Foreign - - -
Amounts included in capital . 108 50
expenditures but not yet paid 388 . 100 437 —
NOTE 10. INCOME TAXES: Defefred:
The sources of income {loss) before income taxes and after dis- Federal (6.922) - ”
. . . State (654) - -
continued operations were as follows:
Foreign - - -
' (7.586) - -
{in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
[ T: fit 7478 -
United States §4785 $3285 Sa10 moome Texexpense (benefl)  S7478) § &0 8 -
Foreign (2,372) (2,769) (2,389)

N

Income (loss) before income taxes $2413 § 517 $(6.491)

Total income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income
{loss) tax rate of 35% to income before taxes. The reasons for this difference for the years ended Dacember 31, were as follows:

{in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Computed expecled tax expense {benefit) $ 844 $ 181 $ (925)
Increase (reduction) in income taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal impact 84 18 (126)
Non-deductible differences 43 48 40
Pricr period trug-up - - (1,914)
Change in valuation allowance (8,628) {247) 2,925
Foreign operalions 4 - -
Alternative minimum tax 108 60 -
Impact of change on deferred tax assels due 1o change in income tax rates - 2443 -
Impact of change on valuation aflowance due to change in income tax retes - (2,443} -
Income tax expense (benefit) $(7.478) 3 60 $ -

In assessing the potential to realize our deferved tax assets, management considers whether il is more likely than not that some portion
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization ¢f deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generalion of
future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the sched-
uled reversal of deferred tax liabiliies, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessmenl. Based
upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets
are deductible, management believes il is more likely than not thal the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible differences,
net of the existing valuation allowances at December 31, 2007. The amount of the deferred tax assel considered reatizable, however,
could be reduced in the near lerm if estimates of future taxable income during the camyforward period are reduced.

Management has determined, based on all available evidence, it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets of approximately $7.6
million wifl be realized. As of December 31, 2006, the Company had recorded a valuaticn allowance equal to its net deferred tax assets.
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The components of deferred intome taxes are as follows:

]

December 31,
{in thousands) 2007 2006
Current:
Deferred revenue $ 385 $ -
Accrued liabilities, not deducted
until paid for lax purposes 250 327
U.S. net operating loss camryovers 1,277 -
1,892 327
Less valuation allowance (1,606) (327)
286 -
Non-current:
U.S. net operating loss carryovers 39,242 44,664
Capital loss carryovers - 4,380
Foreign net operaling loss camyovers 3,724 2,959
Deferred revenue 714 1470
Fixed assets 1,214 867
FAS 123R-accrued NSO expense a0 381
Research and experimentation lax credit 1,662 1,662
Altemative minimum tax credit 200 60
Other 722 120
48,379 57,203
Less valuation allowance (41,079) (57,203)
7,300 -
Net deferred tax assels § 7.586 8 -

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had Federal net operat-

ing loss camyforwards of approximately $105 million to reduce
future taxable income, which expire as follows:

Regular Tax
Expiration Date Net Operating Losses
{in thousands)
2008 $ 23,579
2008 20,364
2010 533
2m 4,154
2012 through 2026 56,614

During 2007 the Company expects to utilize net operating loss car-

$105,244

—

ryovers of approximately $5.7 million. During 2007, 2006 and
2005, net operating loss carryovers of approximately $5 million,
$12 million, and $15.6 million, respectively, expired. In addition,

during 2006, capital losses of approximately $11.3 million expired.
These ilems decreased the recorded valualion allowancé in each
respective year.

Tax expense other than payroll and income taxes were $235,000,
$246,000 and $254,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation
No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an
Interpretation of FASB Statemenl No. 108" ("FIN 48), which
requires reporting of taxes based on tax positions which meet a
more likely than not standard and which are measured at the
amount thal is more likely than not to be realized. Differences
between financial and tax reporting which do not meet this thresh-
old are required to be recerded as unrecognized tax benefits. FIN
48 also provides guidance on the presentation of tax matters and
the recognition of potential IRS interest and penallies. The provi-
sions of FIN 48 were adopted by the Company on January 1, 2007
and had no effect on the Company's financial position, cash flows
or results of operations upon adoption, as the Company did not
have any unrecognized tax benefits. The Company also evaluated
its tax positions as of December 31, 2007 and reached the same
conclusion,

The Company dassifies penalty and interest expense related to
income tax liabilites as an income tax expense. There are no
interest and penallies recognized in the statement of operations or
accrued on the balance sheet.

The Company files tax retums in the United States, in the slates of
Califomia, Colorado and Texas and in several foreign countries.
The tax years 2004 through 2007 remain open to examinalion by
the major taxing jurisdictions to which the Company is subject, as
well as 2003 for California.

NOTE 11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:

On July 26, 2005, the Company announced the divestilure of its
Mushkin subsidiary, which was approved by the Company's board
of directors on July 20, 2005. The board of directors approved the
disposition to allow managemenl to focus on the Company's
F-RAM product lines. On July 26, 2005, the Company executed
an agreement with Mushkin's current general manager fo sell its
Mushkin subsidiary to Mushkin's cument general manager for con-
sideration of approximately $1.8 million. The consideration pro-
vided in the sale included, among other things, Mushkin's current
accounts receivable and cash balances. The sale closed on
July 26, 2005. The Company recognized impairment charges dur-
ing the second quarter of 2005 to goodwill for $3.4 million, to long-
lived assets for $359,000, and to inventory for $170,000, related to
the divestiture.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the consolidated financial siate-

ments of EMS and Mushkin have been recasl to present these
businesses as discontinued operations. Accordingly, the revenue,
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costs and expenses, and assets and liabilities ofithe discontinued operations have been excluded from the respective captions in the
Consolidated Cash Flows, Statements of Operations and Balance Sheets and have been reported in the various statements under the
captions, "Income (foss} from discontinued operations,” *Assets of discontinued operalions” and “Liabilities of discontinued operations”
for all periods. In addition, certain Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements have been recast for all periods to reflect the discontin-
uance of these operations.

[ .
Summary results for the discontinued operations are as follows:

{in thousands) L : For the years ended December 31,
R 2006 2005
Mushkin EMS ° Total Mushkin  EMS Total Mushkin  EMS Total

Operating Results: T
Revenua - - - - - - $7.744 - §$71714
Cosls and expenses - - - - - - (8,008) $239 (7.769)
Impaimment of patents

and intangibles - - - - - - - - -
Impairment of goodwill - - - - - - (3,435) - {3,435
impairment of long-ived assets - - ~ - - - (359) - (359)
Income tax benefit - - - - - - - - -

Net income (loss) - - - - -

\_ s )

$(4,088) $239 §(3,849)

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, there were no assets or fiabilities relating to discontinued operations included in the consolidated
balance sheet.

NOTE 2. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA INFORMA- Geographic Area Net Revenue:

TION: (i thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Following our divestitures discussed in Note 11 herein, our contin-  United States $ 7,010 $ 6,243 $ 3,524
uing operations are conducted through one business segment.  Japan 10,892 9,903 8,041
Our business develops, manufactures and sells ferroelectric non-  United Kingdom 2,362 2124 1,757
volatile random access memory products, microcontrollers, inte-  Indonesia 2449 4149 4,135
grated products, and licenses the fechnology related to such prod-  Taiwan _ 2,062 1,167 288
ucts. Germany 2,656 2,242 2,062
ChinaHong Kong 15,604 8,916 6413

Revenue amounts and percentages for major cuslomers repre-  Jialy 262 1,045 4065
senting more than 10% of total revenue during the past three years  Czech Republic 74 704 943
are as follows: Finland 2,169 764 754
Singapare 775 73 415

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 Slovenia 658 501 585
Mexico 1,058 170 19

Customer A $3.741 $2,023 $5,158 Korea 1,779 899 554
% 5% 15% Thailand 741 - -

Customer B $3308  $4.149  $3421 Rest of world 43 520 137
6% 10% 9% Total $51,094 $40,481 $34,392

The following geographic area data include revenue based on
product shipment destination, license and developmenl payor
location and customer-sponsored research and development
payor location, The data presented for long-lived assets was
based on physical location.




Geographic Area Long-lived Assets (Net):

December 31,

(in thousands) 2007 2008
United Slates $7.741 $7.111
Thailand 435 327
Canada 7,008 6,331
Japan o7 100
$15,491 $14,469

NOTE 13. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN:

The Company has a cash or defered compensation plan {the
*401(k) Plan") intended to qualify under Section 401(k) of the
Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code®), in
which substantially all employees are participants. Parlicipants in
the 401(k) Plan may make maximum pretax contributions, subject
to limitations Imposed by the Code, of 100% of their compensation.
The Company may make, at the Board of Directors' discretion, an
annual contribution on behalf of each participant. No amounts
were contributed by the Company under the 401(k) Plan on behalf
of participating employees during 2005. During 2007 and 2006,
approximately $81,000 and $93,000 were charged to the various
income statement classifications based upon the employee's
department classification for Company contribulions under the

NOTE 15. QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED):

401(k) Plan, which were be paid quarterly for 2007 and were paid
in the first quarter of 2007 for the year ended 2006, respectively.

NOTE 14. CONTINGENCIES:

The Company's industry is characterized by the existence of a
large number of patents and frequent claims and related litigation
regarding patents and olher intellectual property rights. The
Company cannot be certain that third parties will not make a claim
of infringement against the Company or against its semiconductor
company licensees in connection with their use of the Company's
technology. Any claims, even those without merit, could be time
consuming to defend, resull in costly litigation and diversion of
technical and management personnel, or require the Company to
enter into royalty or licensing agreements. These royalty or ficens-
ing agreements, il required, may nol be available to the Company
on acceptable tarms or at all. A successful daim of infingement
against the Company or one of its semiconductor manufacturing
licensees in conaection with use of the Company's technology
could materially impact the Company’s results of operations.

The Company is involved in other legal matters in the ordinary
course of business. Although the outcomes of any such legal
actions cannot be predicted, management believes that there are
no pending legal proceeding against or involving the Company for
which the outcome would likely to have a material adverse effect
upon the Company's financial posilion or results of operations.

The following unaudited information shows selected items by quarter for the years 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006
o Q2 Q3 Q4 #] Q2 a3 Q4
{in thousands, except per share data)

Revenue $11,088 §12,332 §13.400 $14.275 $9614 $10251 $11,158 §9.458
Gross margin, product sales,

including inventory provision 5456 6314 6964 7,249 4,962 5,086 5694 4915
Operating income (loss) (22) 328 1,278 1,176 80 302 668 (85)
Net income (loss) applicable

to common shares from

continuing operaticns (202) 248 1,136 8,700(0 (80) 199 518 {180)
Income (loss) per share
from continuing operations:
Basic $(001) $ 001 $ 005 § 034 $ - $ 000 $ 002 $(001)
Diluted $(001) $ 001 $ 004 § 032 $ -~ $ 000 $ 002 3$(001)

(1} See Note 10 above. The Company recorded a $7.6 million tax benefit during the quarier ended December 31, 2007 refating to the release of a

valvation allowance for deferred tax assets.
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CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Refated CEO and CFO Certifications

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the
Company's reports under the Securifies Exchange Act of 1934, as amended {the "Exchange Act”), are recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchangs Commission's rules and forms, and that such information
is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") and Chief Financial Officer
("CFO"), as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In connection with the preparation of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K, as of December 31, 2007, an evaluation was performad under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's
management, including the CEQ and CFO, of the eflectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Baseo on this evalualion, our management, including our Chief
Execittive Officer and Chief Financia! Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

(b) Changes in Intemal Contral and Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during its most recently completed fiscal quarter that
have malerially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Company's intenal contro! over financial reporting.

(c) Management's Report on Intemal Control Ovef Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reperting, as such term is defined
in the Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Internal controt over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gen-
erally accepted accounting principles. Al intenal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore,
even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation
and presentation. Because of its inherent limitalions, intemal control over financial reporting may no! prevent of detect missiatements.
Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controis may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the principal executive officer and the principal financial offi-
cer, the Company’s management has evaluated the effectiveness of its intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007
based on the criteria established in a report entitied Intemal Contro! - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on its assessmenl, managernent conciuded thal the Company maintained effective
intemal contro! over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007.
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